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December 12, 2012

To the Honorable Mayor John Bartley, members of the City Council and the Citizens of the City of
Stillwater, Oklahoma:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Stillwater, for the {iscal year ended June 30,
2012, is submitted herewith. This repott was prepared by the City’s Department of Finance.
Responsibility for both the aceuracy of the presented data and the compleieness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate
in all material respects; that it is presented in a mammer designed to fairly set forth the financial position
and results of operations of the City in accordance with accounling principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; and, accordingly, all diselogures necessary to enable the reader fo gain the
maximum understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunetion with additional information that we have
furnished in our Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

OVERVIEW
Report Format

Governtental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 implements a model of financial
reparting for state and tocal governments designed te enhance the usefulness of the Cily's annual vepozt.
This report conforms to the standards preseribed in Statement No. 34 as modified by subsequent GASB
statements. :

For fiscal year 2012, the independent auditor’s report on the internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, is presented in a separate document which is available upon request.

Governmental Structure, Local Economic Conditions and Qutlock

The City of Stillwater, located in north central Oklahoma i3 a municipal corporation organized in 18§91
under the applicable laws of the State of Oklaboma, The City carrently has a land area of 28 square
miles and a population of over 40,000, Located in Payne Counly, the City serves as a reglonal center for
shopping, entertainment, health care, and education. Stillwater is home to Oklahoma State University.

The City is governed under the council-manager form of government according to its charfer adopied in
1660, Policymaking and legisiative anthotity are vested in the governing body, which consists of a five-
member council. The five councilors, including the mayor, are elected at-large on & non-partisan basis
for staggered three-year ferms, The mayor is efected at large by the citizenry while the vice-mayor is
elected by the council from its membership. The council holds regular meetings on the first and third
Monday evenings each month.

The economic outtook for the City of Stiltwater and its residents is improving afler the economic
dowmnturn in the most recent years, The City has a diverse economy with a high degree of stability.
Stillwater is the county seat for Payne County and houses other governmental entities and educational
centers that provide a stable labor force. Oklaghome State University is the City’s largest employer and
the City is also the headquarters for the Oklahoma Department of Career and Technology Education and
the Meridian Technology Center. Employment in the state and local government sectors account for
approximately 45% of local wage and salary jobs, In addition menufacturing and advanced technology



companies cover a large share of the local economic base. The health care sector has been a contributor
te local job growth in the past decade. Stillwater has experienced sigmificant retall growth since 2008
with the addition of several national refailers. The retail additions have helped to broaden the city’s
regional trade influence. Going forward into the recovery it is expected to have a positive effeet on
Stillwater’s econonty by helping to tetain focal dollars and contributing to the sales tax collections.

Stillwater’s cost of living remains well below the state and U.S. average. Unemployment for Stillwater is
consistently among the lowest in the U.S, and the surrounding county. The unemployment rate for
Stillwater decreased from 5.9% to 5.1% in the current year,

The Reporting Entity and Yts Services

The City's financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the City of
Stillwater as Iegally defined), as well as all of its component vnits. Component units are legally separate
entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The City provides the full range of
municipal services contetnplated by the City Charter. These include public safety (police, fire and civil
defense), general government functions, recreation and culture, streets and sewers, human services,
sanitation, airport and public improvement.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the primary
government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the Stillwater
Utilities Authority (SUA), Stillwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority (SIRA) and the Stillwater
Public Works Authority {(SPWA) are reported as two enterprise funds and an internal service fund,
respectively, of the primary goverrment. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations and cash flows
from those of the primary government. The Stiltwater Medical Center Authority is reported as a
discretely presented proprietary component unit. The reporting entity is described in Note ! to the
combined financial statements in the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Indernal Controls

The responsibility for establishing and maintaining the internal control structure rests with the City. In
developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
infernal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reascnable, but not
ahsolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition and {2) the evalualion of costs and benefits requiring estimates and judgments by
management.

All internal contro} evaluations oceur within the above framework. We believe that the City’s internal
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of
financial transactions,

Budgetary Control

The administrative level of budgetary control is maintained at the character classification level by the
encumbrance of estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. The legal
level of control at which expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed appropriations is af the
category levels for personal services, materials and supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay
and debt service for each department within each fund. The method of budget adoption and amendment
process is described in Note 1 to the financial statermnents in the financial section of this report.
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Accoanting System

The diverse nature of governmenta!l operations and the necessity of complying with legal provisions
require an accounting system unlike those used by commnercial enterprises, Rather than establishing a
single unified set of accounts for recording and summarizing all financial transactions, the accounis of
the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which constitutes a separate accounting entity, The
furds used by the City are grouped into the following broad fund types:

Governmental Funds: These funds are used to account for the progeams and activities of the
governmental functions of the City and are comprised of the following:

General Fund: This fund serves as the main operating fund of the City. It is used for
recording all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fumd.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted 1o expenditures for specific porposes.

Capital Project Funds: These funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used fo account for the accumulation of financial
resources for payment of interest and principal debt and court-assessed judgments.

Proprietary Funds: These funds are used to account for ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those found in the private sector and are comprised of the following:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that costs
of providing goods or services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges,

Internal Service Fund: This fund is used to account for services and/or comnodities
furnished by a designated program to other programs within the City, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund: This fund is used to administer resources received and held by a governmental unit as
the trustee or as the agent for others. Use of this fund facilitates the discharge of responsibilities placed
upon the governmental unit by virtue of law or other similar authority.

General Fund Operations

The General Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures, which are ot accounted for in other funds,
It finances the traditional governmental functions and is the principal operating fund of the City. Police,
Fire, Parks, Events and Recreation, Library, Community Center, Administration, and Development
Services are all activities reported in the general fund.

Enterprise Fund Operations & Similar Component Units

The SUA, the Adrport Fund, and the SIRA are classified as Bnterprise Funds for reporting purposes.
Enterprise Funds are used to acconnt for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprise where the intent of the goveming body is that costs of providing goods or
services 1o the general public on & continuing hasis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges and/or a determination of net income is desirable. Services accounted for in Enterprise Funds are
tangible, and it is possible to determine the extent to which they benefit individual service consumers,



Rislk Management

In 1986, the City Council directed that the City initiate a self-insurance program for the vehicle liability,
general lability, and City properly damage coverage. This action was initiated due to the Cify’s low loss
experience compared -to high premiums and lower coverage offered by conventicnal and pooled
insurance plans. The first full year of operation for the City’s seif-insurance program was fiscal year
1587-88.

The City had been self-insured for workers compensation and unemployment compensalion coverage
prior to the decision to implement a self<insurance program. To create a self-insurance fund for the City,
the workers compensation and unemployment compensation funds were combined with the funds
budgeted in the 1987 fiscal year for insurance preminms. Within this fund, accounts were created for the
different types of losses the City could anticipate. Expenditures from the fund are determined by claims
filed with the City during the year and approved for payment. Payment of claims $10,000 and over
require City Couneil approval. Payments of claims under $10,000 require City Manager approval.

The health benefit program for employees is self-funded using a third party administrator with the city
maintaiping stop loss coverage. Traditional property insurance is maintained on the city hall and Iibrary.
Excess property coverage is mainfained on the water utility as required by the bond Indenture. Coverage
for airport liability and hangar keeper’s Hability was added in 1995, In 1997, an excess lability program
was established with the city continuing to administer claims. Coverage includes general liability,
employee benefits liability, law enforcement Hability, public entity management, EMT, and commercial
auto,

The City has several policies and procedures regarding safety training of employees, hazardous material
communications, secident reporting and investigation, and medical assistance. The City intends to Hmit
their risk exposure through stringent enforcement of these policies.

Cash Management

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for maintaining the City's investment portfolio and providing
oversight for bond proceeds held by trustees. The City generally combines unrestricted cash for
irvestment purposes. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in time deposits and U.S,
Treasury Bills, The City, SUA and SPWA use inferest bearing NOW checking accounts and higher
yielding money market accounts as provided under Public Law 97-320 (sec.327). The City’s cash is
deposited daily. Deposits are insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized.

Reserve Policy

The City has implemented a policy designed to add to the emergency reserves, This policy is an informal
budgetary policy utilized at the direction of the City Manager with council agreement. The policy allows
for ihe reserve to increase by the area’s CPI index or 3% or whichever is greater on an annual basis as
funds are available.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

The city actively pursued funds available from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA). The city was avle to coinplete a $5.8 million runway expansion at the airport iy fiscal year
2009 and secured funds for $13.5 million in water and wastewater prejects which began in fiscal year
2009-10 and confinued in 2010-11. The last phase of the antomated meter project should be completed

“4n fizcal year 2012-13.
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Independent Audit

The Oklahoma State Statutes and City Charter require an annual audit by certified public accountants or
qualified independent public accountants. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984, as
amended in 1996, and related OMB circular A-133 and “Government Auditing Standards™ issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, The independent certified public accountants that performed
the audit were selected by the City Council.

The City’s Audit Committee is a five-member advisory committee provided for under City Ordinance
#1929, Under the provisions of the ordinance, the City Council appoints the committee, The purpose of
the Audit Committee is to maintain independence between the outside auditors and city management.
The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and evaivate the year-end financial
statements and independent auditor’s report, review and report deficiencies in internal contrel, oversee
the audit function and to report to the City Council as required. The independent auditor’s report on the
basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the
financial section of this report. The independent auditor’s reports related Spemﬁcally to the Single Audit
are included in a separately bound Single Audit supplement.

Awards, The Government Finance Cfficers Association of the United States and Canada (GFQA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Stillwater for
its comprehensive annunal financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City poblished an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report, This report satisfied both accounting principles generally aceepied in the United States
of America and applicable legal requirements,

A. Certificate of Achievenient is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Stillwater has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty consscutive years. We belisve that cur current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Pregram requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate,

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated
services of the entire Department of Finance staff, with special thanks to Tammy Brown, Christy Cluck
and Kelli Couch and the professional assistance of the City’s independent auditors, Berberich Trahan &
Company, P.A, In addition, thanks are extended to the riembers of the Andit Committes for their review

“and oversight of the audit process and to the members of the City Council for their interest and support in

strengthening and improving the fiscal policies of the City of Stitbwater.

The City will strive to contitue to provide its citizens with quality services, management and finaneial

reporting.
%Zitég M&z&f@ﬂgﬁx

Respectfully submitted,.

Din Gallolvay #

Marcy Alégxander

City Manager Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the
City Coungil
City of Stillwater, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the povernmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Stiltwater, Oklahoma (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively compeise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
staternents are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We ¢id not zudit the financiai statements of the Stillwater Medical
Center Authority, the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were andited by other
auditors whose repost thereon had been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the Stillwater Medical Center Authority, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted out audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
ard the stendards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrofier Genera! of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aundit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our andit and the repor{ of other
auditors provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our andit and the report of other anditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial pesition of the governmentsl activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund inforraation of the City, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial pesition and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America,

As described in Note 11 to the financial statements, the 2011 financial statements and, therefore the Fuly 1, 2011
net asset balances, have been restated to reflect the changes as described in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Anindependently Gwned Member

MCGLADREY ALLIANCE % McGladrey

MecGladrey Alliance is a premler affiliation of indepandent accounting and consulting firins. MoGladray Afiiance member firms maialain their name, autonginy and independence
aiitl are responsible for their own client fee arrangements, delivary of services and maintenance of dient refationships,



u
1|

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12, 2012, on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regalations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that
report s to describe the scope of onr testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal centrel over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gouemment Auditing
Standards and should be considered in agsessing the results of cur andit,

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 through 22, the Scheduies of Funding Progress on pages 77 through 78 and
the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditurss and Changes to Fund Balances - Budget and Actoal {Budget Basis) -
General Fund on pages 72 through 76 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain Timited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do nol express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide ns with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coflectively
comprise the City’s basic financiat statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial staternents,
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial staterents. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themseives, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairty stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the basic financial statements. Such information has

not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Prbericdpaban € Cs, P H.

December 12, 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiseal Year Ended June 30, 2012

- As management of the City of Stillwater, we offer readers this narrative overview and

analysis of the financial activities of the City of Stillwater for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presenied here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transieittal.

Using the Financial Staterent in this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The financial statements
presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Stillwater (the “City”), the
Stillwater Utilities Authority (the “SUA) and other component units. The Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole, including the SUA and component units, and present a longer-term view
of the City’s finances. Included in this report are government-wide statements for each
of two categories of activities — governmental and business-type, along with two
discretely-presented component units.

The government-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the
City from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of
accountting. They present governmental activities and business-type activities separately
and combined. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. These statements
include all assets of the City, including infrastructure, as well as all liabilities, including
long-term debt. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most
significant funds.

Reporting the City as 2 Whole — Statements of Net Assets and Activities

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infroduction to the City of
Stillwater’s bagic financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer questions. These statements include all assets and labilities using the
accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the
City’s net assets and changes in them from the prior year. The City’s net assets — the
difference between assets and liabilities ~ is one way to measure the City’s financial
condition or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are

" indicators of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other

non-financial factors must be considered, such as changes in the City’s property tax base
and the condition of the City’s roads, to assess the overall health of the City.
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As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we
divide the City into three kinds of activities:

Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including
the police, fire, administration, streets and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and
state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s electric, water, sewer and sanitation
utilities are reported here, along with the airport.

Discretely-presented component units — The City’s report has one discretely presented
component unit, the Stillwater Medical Authority. Although a legally separate entity, this
“component unit” is important because the City is financially accountable for them in
some way. The Stillwater Medical Authority is a public trust of the City and the City is
the beneficiary of the trust.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds — Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Stillwater, like
other state and local govermments, uses fund aecounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements, Some funds dre required to be
established by State law and by bond covenants, However, management establishes
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show
that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money.
All of the funds of the City of Stillwater can be divided into two categories;
governmental fonds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported. in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left
at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to
those in the Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation
following each Governmental Fund financial statement.

The General Fund’s fund batance increased by $2,386,808 due to increased sales and use
lax.

15



;-‘i
E;

The Transportation Fund receives a transfer from the general fund of a %4 percent sales
tax dedicated for tramsportation improvements. The Transportation Fund balance
increased by $39,167 due to additional sales tax revenue over the prior year,

Proprietary fund — When the City charges customers for the services it provides- whether
to outside customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprictary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds, along with certain
capital' project funds, are the same as the business-type activities reported in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as
cash flows. Net assets of the Stillwater Utilities Authority (SUA) have increased by $7
million or 6.14%. Rate increases were implemented for electric, water, wastewater, solid
waste collection and street sweeping. Operating revenues increased by $4.3 million or
7.08%. Operating Expenditures increased by $3.67 million or 7.59%. Transfers to the
city’s general fund increased $173,561 over the prior year.

The City as Trustee

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary for other assets that — because of a trust arrangement
~ can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. "All of the City’s fiduciary activities are
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets. These activities are exeluded from the City’s other financial statements because
the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purposes.

The City as a Whole

For the year ended June 30, 2012, net assets for the governmental activities and business-
type activities changed as follows:

The City of Stlllwater's Net Assets
(expreszed in § 000's)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning net assets 5 96,872 % 129,591 % 226,463
Increasef{Decrease) 2,325 7,318 0,643
Ending net assets $ 09,197 % 136,009 % 236,108

The above numbers reflect an increase of 2.40% in net agsets for governmental activities
and an increase of 7.17% in net assets for business-type activities, Overall, the net assets
for both governmental and business type activities increased 4.26% for this fiscal year,
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The following is & summary comparison of the change in net assets from last year for the

City of Stillwater,
The City of Stillwater's Net Assets
(expressed in § 0600's)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets:
Current and other assets $23,028 § 19,764 $ 57,357 § 52,246 $ 80,385 § 72740
Capital assets 02,682 92,647 118,750 117,230 211,432 209,877

Total assets 115,710 112,441 176,107 170,176 291,817 282,617
Liabilities: .
Long-term liabilities 11,484 11,991 33,832 28,632 45,318 40,623
Other liabilities 5,029 3,701 5,366 12,487 10,395 16,188

Total liabilities 16,513 15,692 39,198 41,119 85,711 56,811
Net assets:
Invested in capital asssts 85,208 84,399 95,439 92,794 180,647 177,193
Restricted 8,131 14,005 2,111 7,630 10,242 21,635
Unrestricted 5,858 (1,655) 39,359 28,633 45217 26,978

Total net assets $99,197 $ 96,749 $ 136,909 $129,057 $ 236,106 $ 225806

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Stiliwater is able to report positive
balances in net assets for the governmental activities and business-type activities as well
as for the city as a whole,

The largest portion of the City’s net assets, 76.51 percent, reflects its investment in
capital agsets, less any related debt used to acquire those assets to provide services to
citizens, Capital assets are items such as land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure.  Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital agsets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, 6.88 percent, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. :
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of Stillwater’s net assets by $2,325,285 which
confributed to a 1.02% increase of the net assets of the City of Stillwater, The following

provides details of the increase:

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for seivices

Operating Grants & contributions

Capital grants & contributions
General revenues:

Sales and Use taxes

Other taxes

Othrer general revenues

Total Revenues

Program Expensas:
General Government
Financial Administration
Public Safety
Streets & Sewers
Engineering and Public Works Administration
Recreation and Culture
Economic Development
Health and Welfare
Interest on Long-term Debt
Stillwater Utilities Authority
Stillwater Public Golf Autharity
Business Area Development
Alrpart Operations

Total Expenses

Increase/(Decrease] in Net Assels Before
Transfers

Net Transfers

Increasef(Decrease) in Net Assets

The City of Stillwater's Statement of Activities

(expressed in $ 000's)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 3957 § 4,124 $67,194 $62,644 $71,151  $66,768
311 178 - - 311 178
806 785 3,407 2,507 4,213 3,292
25,787 24,389 - “ 25,787 24,380
3,568 3,624 - - 3,568 3,624
78 105 626 278 704 383
34,507 33,205 71,227 65,429 105,734 98,634
4,067 3,750 4,087 3,750
819 6528 619 628
18,236 16,701 18,236 16,701
8,445 7,485 8,445 7,485
480 569 480 569
5,850 6,134 5,850 6,134
578 423 578 423
1,885 1,535 1,885 1,935
239 271 239 271
52,824 49122 52,824 49,122
173 240 173 240
2,685 2,132 2,695 2,132
40,389 37,496 $5652 51,494 96,091 88,986
{5,892} (4,291) 15,635 13,635 8,643 9,644
8,217 4,672 {8,217) {4,672) . -
$ 2325 § 381 $ 7,318 $9263 $ 9643 $ 0,644

Sales and use fax received in fiscal year 2012 resulted in an increase from the prior year
of §1,397,959. Transfers from the SUA to the general fund increased by $173,561.
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Property taxes decreased by $104,785. Investment income increased by $134,790. Net
assets for governmental activities increased by 2.40%.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City of Stillwater’s net assets by $7,317,827 which
contributed a 3.23% increase in the net assets of the City of Stiliwater. Details are
presented in the preceding chart. Rate increases enacted for all utility services
contributed to a $4,549,934 increase in charges for services in the business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budget preparation has been a challenge for the past three fiscal years as national

econoric eonditions made their impact locally. Significant cost reductions have been

made but at the same time it did not become necessary to use emergency reserves to fund

the shortfalls. Careful examination of resources and service levels has poised the City to

be more efficient as the recovery continues. Although fiscal year 2010-11 revenues did

not present any significant revenue growth and were still behind the level of fiscal 2008-
09, it appeared that revenues had stabilized.

The 2011-12 budget was prepared to focus on the delivery of core service operations.
Staffing levels were still not budgeted to pre-FY 2009 levels, however no lay-offs or
furloughs were included. For FY 2012, the freeze on step increases was removed, The
capital budget included the replacement of several police patrol vehicles, a rescue unit for
the fire department, and street maintenance equipment.

Capital Asset & Debt Administration

The following is & summary of changes in capital assets and debt administration for
FY2012. More detailed information on capital asset activity and long-term debi activity
is contained in the accompanying notes to the financial statements on pages 51 and 52
and pages 54 to 61, respectively.

Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2012, the City had $211 million invested in capital assets including
police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, water and sewer lines, electric
systerns and roads,
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Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Activities

2012 2011 2012 2011

Total

2012 2011

Land 7435 $§ 7312 % 1,71 $§ 1,715 § 9150 $ 9027
Buildings 24,152 24,152 ' 10,677 9,987 34,829 34,1309
Other Improvements - - 25,282 25,249 25282 25,249
Equipment. 19,436 20,614 21,659 2,659 41,095 23,273
Infrastructure 151,630 150,858 182,730 176,094 334,380 326,952
Intangible Assets - . 1,604 74 1,604 74
Construction-in-progress 7,342 1,720 6,992 7,692 14,334 9,412

209,995 204,656 250,659 223470 460,654 428,126
Less Depreciation 17427 112,009 132,168 124,773 248,595 236,782

Totals

Debt Administration

At year-end, the City had $38.7 millon in long term debt.

detailed below as follows:

General Obligation Bonds
Capital Lease Obligations
Notes Payable

Revenus Bonds

Refundable Grant Obligations

Totals

92568 $ 92647 $ 1184081 $ 98,607

$ 211,058 191,344

The City of Stillwater's Long-term Debt
(expressed In $000'%)

These debts are further

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
5 7,359 § 8248 5 - $ - $ 7359 % 8,248
- - 2,347 2,128 2,347 2,128
- - 27,160 26,087 27,180 26,087
- Co- 1,808 4,878 1,606 4,878
205 239 24 15 229 254

§ 7,564 3 8487 $31,137 3§ 33,088

$38701 § 4M575

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

During FY 2012, the city was fortunate to see signs of recovery with slight increases in
most revenues. It appears that revenues have stabilized and are demonstrating renewed
economic activity. For FY 2013, the city has projected an approximate 2% growth in
revenues. Although revenue is showing renewed growth, costs in all categories bave
continued to rise and so a conservative approach to the budget is stifl necessary., The City
has provided a wide array of services to the citizens for many years and is still committed
to continue to do so, Through a complete administrative reorganization over the past
eighteen months, a greater collaboration between service departments has provided new
efficiencies and shared resources. In addition, efforts in cooperation with the community

20



have led to the development of public/private partnerships to increase efficiency.
Community organizations have partoered in the operation and management of several
public recreation and quality of life services, The budget for 2013 includes a cost of
living increase of 3%. Capital expenditures are concentrated in the areas of public safety,
infrastructure improvemeunts, neighborhood street projects and key area of children’s
playground upgrades. The city is also developing a long term capital plan for the next
five years to address major capital needs. Total expenditures budgeted reflect a 12.1%
decrease from the original 2012 budget, This decrease is mostly due to the completion of
transportation projects funded in 2012, The budget maintains 2012 staffing levels and the
asgociated employee benefits. The budget also includes a reserve for emergencies and
capital projects in the water and wastewater utilities.

The Mereruiser plant closed in November 2011 and moved operations to Fond du Lac,
Wisconsin. After initial layoffs of over a hundred casting and machining positions, the
company announced an additional 200 assembly jobs to be transferred in late 2010 and
2011, The plant employed approximately 400 people pricr to the announcement. The
company placed the facility for sale and the property was subsequently purchased by
ASCO in July of 2012, ASCO Industries, a Belgium aerospace manufacturer, announced
plans to bring up to 600 jobs to Stillwater. ASCO designs and makes high strength
aireraft components and assemblies for Airbus, Boeing, Bombardier and Embraer
commercial jests. This will be the second U.S. facility for the company. The company
also has facilities in Germany, Brazil and Canada, Company officials indicated that one
of the main factors in locating in Stillwater is Meridian Technology Center’s ability to
train industrial workers.

In August 2012, Total Energy purchased the former Quad/Graphics facility and
announced plans to bring 200 jobs to Stiliwater, The company makes storage tanks,
towers and custom pressure vessels and they plan to open a fabricating facility in
Stillwater. 'The plant should be operational by April 1, of 2013,

The City’s first Business Improvement District has welcomed more than 25 new
businesses to Stillwater’s downtown since its creation in December 2007. Several
established businesses have improved their facades and some have relocated to the
district. Several incentives have been created to encourage business growth within the
district. The goals of the district are to: 1) Increase business activity within the district,
which will result in economic growth for the area. 2) Become a destination place for
Stillwater residents and visitors. 3) Establish Downtown Stillwater as the premier
husiness, cultural and entertainment destination in Oklahoma.

Oklahoma State University has planned expansion projects representing over $800
million dollars as part of the university’s Master Plan 2025 gencrating a $1.2 billion
economic. impact on the Stillwater area. Extensive renovations on the Student Union
were completed in 2012,

OSU centinues to excel in the academic arena making the university attractive to students
and faculty. Fall enroliment for 2011 is 23,459, The freshman class enrollment of 4,298
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was the largest in school history. In February of 20180, Oklahomsa State President V.
Burns Hargis announced the launch of “Branding Success: The Campaign for Oklahoma
State University”. The campaign goal is to raise $1 billion to fund scholarships, faculty
positions, research programs and facilities. The program currently has reached $900
million committed to the campaign. Oklahoma State Alumnus and Philanthropist T.
Boone Pickens announced he would provide a $100 million testamentary challenge gift to
fund a major endowment for scholarships, The target date for the campaign is December
31, 2014,

Commercial and single family home building permits have increased slightly. There
were 119 commercial permits igsued in calendar year 2011 and 98 had been issued in the
current year at the time of this report. There were 53 single family residential permits
issued in calendar year 2011 and 71 so far in 2012. Residential propetties have kept their
value in the local market,

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this repott or need
additional financial information, contact the Finance Department at 723 S. Lewis, P.O.
Box 1449, Stillwater, Oklahoma or phone at (405) 372-0025.
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ASSETS

Cashi and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable, net

Internal balances

Interest receivable
Installment loans recetvable
Leasehold receivable

Inventories

Due from other governments

Other assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investioents

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

Other capital assets, net of acoumuiated depreciation

Investments in joint ventures

Goodwill, net

Cther assets

Creferred charges
Total asscts

LIABILITIES
Agcounts payable
Agcrued liabilities

Acerued interest payable
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
" Due in more than one year
Other post employment benefits obligations

Total labilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Street improvements
Specific operating activities
Nonexpendable operating activities

Unrestricted
Total net asseis

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012
Primary Government Component Unit
Goverfunental Business-type Stillwater Medical
Activities Activities Total Center Authority
$ 17,056,642  § 28019111 & 45075753 § 17,361,359
- 10,268,357 10,268,357 26,928,253
418,743 10,270,917 10,689,662 11,536,078
314,290 (314,290 . -
- 19,506 19,506 -
57,500 135,461 192,961 -
- 205,000 205,000 -
178,437 5,164,713 5,343,150 1,876,017
5,002,374 219,206 5,222,080 -
. - - 1,735,044
- 3,368,996 3,368,996 967,148
- . - 1,650,074
14,777,010 10,237,401 25,014,411 2,870,370
77,790,727 108,254,157 186,044,884 18,084,864
- . - 1,850,970
- - - 5,046,576
- - - 94,519
114,697 258,703 373,400 315,719
115,710,922 176,107,238 291,818,160 110,317,692
2,178,740 4,730,541 6,909,231 2,260,159
2,827,598 432,072 3,259,670 6,240,561
22,633 203,481 226,114 -
933,467 5,962,868 6,921,335 1,135,439
8,704,975 27,139,435 35,844,410 13,992,379
1,821,012 729,565 2,550,578 -
16,513,426 39,197,962 55,711,388 23,628,578
85,208,395 95,439,173 180,647,568 25,605,624
578,769 741,699 1,320,468 -
320,160 1,366,601 1,686,761 2,550,074
6,003,859 - 6,003,859 -
1,228,415 2,712 1,231,127 748,902
- - - 1,397,505
5,857,898 39,359,091 45216,989 56,387,000
$ 69,197496  § 136909276  § 236,106,772 § 86,689,114

The gccompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAROMA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues Net (Bxpense) Revenue and Clanges in Net Assets
Openating Capital Primary Govezpment Commponent Uair
Charges far Grants and Grants and CGiovernmental Business-type Stittwater Medical
Functions/Programs Expenseg Services Contmibutions _ Contributions Avtivities Activitics Total Center Authoiity
Primary Government
Government activites
Public safty $ 182337100 8 261,000 § 45981 8 126,765 § (7.801124) § - £ 17801124 ¢ -
Recragtion and cuire 5,850,043 1,397,513 200,380 - 4,252,150} - {4,232.150) -
Generl government 4,057,084 387,053 - - {3.680,031) - {3,680,031) -
Financial administation 419,436 1,182,234 - - 582,748 - 562,748 -
Street and sewers BA44.721 698,777 . 530,548 (7.215,356) - {1.215,396) -
Enginesring and public works administration 479,549 - - - (479.849) - {479.84%9) -
Eeonomie developtaent 377,815 - - - (577,816} - (577.316) -
Hezlth and welfare 1,885,038 29,551 64,332 148,443 {1,642,712) - (1.642,712) -
listerest on long- texm debt 238,855 - - - (238,8553 - (238.855) -
Total governmental activitiss 48,398,550 1557008 310,693 805,756 (35,325.185} - (35,325,185) B
Business-iype activities
Electric, waler, wastewater and
sanifation operations 52,823,732 63,532,650 - 1,704 460 - 14,413,378 14,413,378 -
Business area developrmens 173,476 23,328 - 139,204 - (10,5443 (10,944) -
Alrport cperations 2,695,168 1,637,821 - 1.565.535 - 506,198 50&_198 -
Total business-fype activitles 55,692,376 67,193,869 - 3,407,195 - 14,008,632 14,908,632 -
Total primary government b 96,091,038 § 71,156,837 _§ 310693 3 47312.85% (35.325,185) 14,908,632 {20,416,553) -
Component Unit
Medical Center 3 882833554 % 99,346252 3§ 3§ 75.000 - - - 1,138,021
General roveniies
Taxes:
Sales and uss taxes 25,787,401 - 25,787,401 -
Property taxes 1,343,480 - 1,343,480 -
Franckize 2nd public service tixes 1,544,506 - 1,544,506 -
ES11 taxes 63,870 - 63.870 -
Hotel'motel taves 615,997 - 615,997 -
Investment iscome 78,162 275937 354,099 1,180,887
Miscellaneous ) - 350,312 150312 -
Transfers-internal activity 8,217,054 (8,217,054} - —
Total genera] revenues and transfers 37,650,470 (7,590,805) 30,059,665 1.180.887
Change in net assets 2,325,285 7.317,827 2,643,112 12,318,008
Net assets -beginping , as origielly stated 96,749,211 129,056,771 225,805,982 74,370,206
Prior period adiustment 123,000 534678 - -
Nat assets -beginning , a5 resiated 95,872,211 $20.591,440 226,463,560 74,370,206
5 09197495 0§ 13690027 % 236106772 § 86.689.114

Net assets-ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
Other Total
Transportation Governmental Crovernmental
Cieneral Improvement Funds Funds
ASSETS '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,683,256 $ 7,293,144 $ §92,193 $ 16,868,593
Due from other governments . 4,867,354 - 135,520 . 5,002,874
Accounts receivable, net 413,211 4,951 583 418,745
Due from other finds 501,279 - - 501,279
Inventories 178,437 - - 178,437
Total assets $ 14,643,537 $ 7,298,005 $ 1,028,298 22,969,928
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 713,500 $ 1,284,674 $ 155,566 $ 2,153,740
Accrued Habilities 1,506,771 6,591 - 1,603,362
e to other firnds 378,000 2,971 10,928 391,989
Deferred revenue 106,246 - 20,398 126,644
Total liabilities 2,794,607 1,294.236 186,892 4,275,735
FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable: inventories 178,437 - - 178,437
Restricted for:
Debt service - - 320,160 320,160
Public safety 107,914 - - 107,914
Capital improvements - 6,003,859 578,769 6,582,628
Sales tax transfer : 1,654,153 - - 1,654,153
Committed to:
Public safety 555,967 - - 555,967
Feonomic development 386,097 - - 386,097
Assigned to:
Self insurance 280,841 - - 280,841
Recreation and culture 167,036 - - 167,036
Unassigned 8,518,485 - (57,525) 8,460,960
Total fund balances 11,848,930 6,003,859 841,404 18,694,193

Total lighilities and fund balances $ 14,643,537 $ 7,298,095 § 1,028,206

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statetnent of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resowrees and, therefors, are not

report in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $117,426,524 92,122,237
Certain long-term receivables are not aveilable to pay for current fond labilities and, therefore, are

deferred in the funds . 126,644

: continyed

25



Installment note receivable received for sale of asset is not reported in the fund statements

Unamortized debt issuance costs are part of tet proceeds reported in fimd statements

Internal Service fund assets and Liabilities are reporled in the proprietary fund in the fund
financial statements but are included in government activities in the Statsment of Net Assets

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financlal resources and,
therefore are not reported in the funds:
Accrued workers' compensation claims
Accreed interest payable
General obligation bonds payvable
Accrued compensated absences
Agccrued post employment obligations

Net asaets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral pext of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Taxes
Intetgovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Fees and rentals
lnvestment income
Licenses and permiis

Other miscellaneous revenzes

Total revennes

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public safety
Recreation and culiure
General goverament
Financial administration
Streets and sewers
Operations
Economic development
Human services

Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Transters in
Transters out

Total other finuncing sources (uses)

Met change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, beginning

FUND BALANCES, eading

Other Totals
Transportation Governmental Governmental

General Improvement Funds Funds
3 28,011,774 - b 1,360,080 5 29,371,854
320,608 - 212,775 533,384
650,145 - - 650,145
176,389 - - 776,389
1,438,373 - - 1,438,373
44,548 29,796 3,510 77,854
268,200 - - 268,209
%68,048 - 12,777 880,825
32,378,005 29,796 1,589,142 33,997,033
17,649,898 - - 17,649,858
5,062,437 - . 5,002,437
3,330,545 - - 3,330,543
591,712 - - 591,712
2477857 192,266 - 2,670,103
478 606 - . 478,606
527,896 - - 527,896
1,380,359 - 74,762 1,455,121
- - 825,000 825,000
- - 305,000 305,000
626,451 6,180,294 403,647 7,210,392
32,125,741 6,372,560 1,608,409 40,106,710
252,354 (6,342,764) (19,261 {6,109,677)
12,702,136 8,108,210 . 20,810,346
(10,567,682) £1,726,279) (294,329} (12,588,290}
2,134,454 6,381,931 {294,329} 8,222,056
2,386,808 39,167 {313,590} 2,112,379
9,462,122 5,964,692 1,155,000 16,581,814
$ 11,848,930 $ 6,003,859 $ 841,404 3 18,694,193




Reconciliation to Statement of Activities:
Net change in find balances
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets,
Capital asset purchases
Depreciation
Net eftect of varicus miscellanecus transactions invelving capitel assets (1.e. sales, trade-ins and donations)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are nof reported as revenues in the funds;
Deferred revenue
Repayment of debt principsl is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term. liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Fund revenne :
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do nof require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental fonds
Amortization of gain on refunding :
Accrued interest payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued workers' compensation claims
Accrued post employment benefits
Change in net assets-governmental activities

The accempanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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2,112,379

6,078,525
(6,652,673)
© 371,786

(72,523)

825,000
(24,682)

(12,771)
66,145
(118,467)
50,285

L {(297,719)

$

2,325,085
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ASBETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investicnts

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for uncoltectible accounts of $258,413
Due liom other funds
Advanees to othier funds
Interest receivable
Instailment loans receivable
Leasehold receivable
Inventories
Total current assets
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Advances to other funds
Lensehold receivable
Restricled cash and equivalents
Due from other govermuents
Capital assets, non depreciabie
Capital assefs, net of acenmulated depreciation
Deterred charges
Total noncierent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current gortion of compensated absences
Acorued inferest payable
Current portion of customer deposits payable
Current portion of long-tenn dels obligations, net
Due to other fonds
Carrent portion of advasices from other finds
Current portion of vefimdable graat obligations
Total current Habilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Noneurrent portion of customer deposits payable
Muaneurrent portion of campensated absences
Mencurrent portion of tefundable grant obligations
Noncurrent portion of advances from other tunds
Nowenrrent pertion of fong-term debt obligations, net
Gther postemployment bepefits
Total noncuerent liabililies
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restrioted for dubt service
Restricted donation
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestdeted
Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2082

Business-type Activitios

Enterprise Punds Governmental
Stillwater Npsz Malor AcHvities-
Utilities Enlerprise Tnternal
Anthority Funds Totals Servioe Funds
3 27,842,292 3 176,819 $ 28,018,111 $ 183,049
10,268,357 - 10,268,357 .
2,351,358 . 2,351,358
10,270,271 646 10,270,917 E
80,774 - 80,774 -
. - - 20,000
19,506 - 19,506 ~
] 135,461 135,461 -
- 20,000 20,000 -
5,128,720 35,993 5,164,713 -
55,961,278 368,919 56,330,197 208,049
- « - 185,000
- 185,000 185,000 -
1,017,638 - 1,017,633 -
- 219,206 219,206 -
7,106,428 3,130,913 10,237,401 445,500
97,068,304 11,185,853 108,254,157 .
258,703 - 258,703 -
105,451,153 14,720,972 120,172,103 630,500
161,412,411 15,089,891 176,502,302 838,549
4,708,128 22,413 4,730,541 25,000
417,775 14,297 432,07 -
58,025 1,984 60,009 -
203,481 - 203,481 -
675,034 - 875,034 -
5,203,911 - 5,203,911 20,000
. 190,064 190,064 -
- 20,000 20,000 -
- 23,914 23,914 -
11,266,354 272,672 11,539,026 435,000
511,732 11,680 523412 -
677,845 29,704 707,549 .
. - . 185,000
- 183,000 185,000 -
25,908,474 - 25,908,474 -
729,363 - 729,565 -
27,827,616 226,384 23,054,000 183,000
39,003,970 499,056 19,503,026 230,000
81,122,407 14,316,766 95,439,173 -
1,366,601 - 1,366,601 -
- 2712 2,712 -
741,699 - 141,699 -
39,087,734 1,357 39,359,091 608,549
3 122,318,441 8§ 14,590,833 $ 136,509,276 $ 608,549
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CIFY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES BN FUND NET ASSETS - FROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds Governimental
Stillwater Non Major Activities
Utilities Enterprise Internal
Authority Funds Totals Servige Fund
QOPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services, net of bad debt expense § 62,827,992 3 1,341,491 $ 64,169,433 $ 10
Other 2,704,658 319,668 3,024,326 -
Total operating revemues 65,532,650 1,661,159 67,193,809 10
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance 45,583,065 2,051,054 47,635,019 25,000
Diepreciation 6,442,108 817,590 7,259,698 "
Total operating expenses 52,026,073 2,868,644 54,894,717 25,000
Operating income (loss) 13,506,577 1,207,485} 12,259,002 (24,950)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 214,241 1,696 275,937 308
Interest expense and fiscal charges {723,108) " (725,108) ~
Debt issnance costs (72,551 - (72,551) -
Loss on disposal of asset - (12,3393 (12,339) -
Intergovenmental revenue - 1,555,886 1,555,886 -
Miscellaneous 350,312 - 350,312 -
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) {173,106} 1,545,243 1372137 308
meome (loss) before
capital vontributions and transfers 13,333,471 337,758 13,674,229 (24,682)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions 1,721,801 146,853 1,868,654 -
Transfers it 8,361,426 293,971 8,855,397 -
Transfors out {17,077,453) . (17,077.453) ;
Net capital contributions and transfets (6,794,226) 440,824 (6,353,402) -
Change in net assets 5,539,245 778,582 7,317,827 {24,685
NET ASSETS, beginning of year, as previously statad 115,244,518 13,812,253 129,056,771 187,734
PRICR PERIOD adjustmeni 534,678 - 534,678 445,500
NET ASSETS, beginning as restated 115,779,196 13,812,253 139,591,449 633,231
NET ASSETS, end of year § 122318441 § 14,590,335 § 136,909,276 H 608,549

The accorapanying notes are an integral part of this staternent,
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CITY OF STILLWATER, CKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROFRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-type Activities
Enterpriss Funds Groveramenlal
Sdlhwvater Non Major Activitics
Uilitles Boterprise Tnteroel
Authority Fupdy Totals - Serviee Funds
CASH PLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts From customers, including deposits $ 62,094,076 5 1,3414719 $ 63,435,855 § -
Payments to suppllers (32,773,424} {1,559 438} (34,332,862} .
Payents 1o empleyess 11,575,256 (378,387) {11.953.543) -
Business develapment incentive loans swed - {140,800 (149,000) -
Cotlections of business develor t itlcendive foan principal - 8,575 §.578 -
Tntgr fitnd activily-poyments to otber Bands {1,304,690) 165,969 [ERE Y -
Other recelpts 2,704,658 319,668 3,024,326 10
Net crgh provided by (used o operaiing activities 19,143,364 (246,133} 18,899,231 i
CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPTTAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Tragsfers s gtiver Amds (16:4t1,752) 293,971 (16,117,781} -
Transfers in from other funds 6,349,141 - 6,849,141 -
Privipal paid on nongapilal debe (12¢,113) - (120,118) “
Taterest paid o nogcagitel debs {1,504} - (1,501} -
Net cash provided by (used for} noncapital financiug activities 10.684,230) 203971 (9,390,258 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital costributions B 146,833 146,833 -
Capital grants - 1407322 1,407,322 -
Purchaves of capital esets : {3.894,852) 11804472y {5.699,334) -
Proceeds Hom sale of captial aisers 28,504 - 28,904 -
Proceeds From capital debt 2,585,611 Bl 2,683.61% -
‘Transfers in refated to capital Srancing L712,285 - 1,712,285 -
Principal {paid) received om caphtal debt 6,349,767y 14,442 (6,3%5,325) -
Tierest peid on capital debt 964,771 - (064,771} .
Net cash wsend in capitn) and related financing activities 15,782,600) £13,855% {6,008, 4351 -
CASHELOWS FROM BNVESTING ACTIVITIES
Puichases of inveshasnts 110,254,161} - {10,254,151) -
Proceeds from matucity of investments 15.284.669 - 15,284.66% .
Taterent received 214,909 L& 208,783 308,
Ned eash provided hy invesling activisies 5235417 3,876 5,237,203 308
Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 7513951 (1566,141) 19471810 118
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, boginning of yesr 33297,337 342,960 23,640,297 187,731
. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year [ 31,211,288 3 176,819 $ 31,383,107 ¥ 18E049
'i Reconciliation of aperatinyg tncome {toss) to net cosh provided (used fory operating activities
| Operating iacome {joss) § 13,506,577 $ (1,207,485 5 12,209,092 $ (2490
. Adj 1o reesuil ting i {loxs to net éosh provided by {usad for)
I. operating aclivities:
| Depraciation 6,442,108 817,590 7.259,69% -
’ Chenges in asets pid liabilides
.ﬂ Receivabics; net (786,253 1131436) {917,691) .
- Tnvetrories . (374495} 107,846 (266,849} -
J. Acconnts and other payables: 173317 162,993 336310 25,000
1 Accrued expenses 56,517 4,559 61,076 -
i : Other postemployment benetiss . 127,595 - 127,595 -
Mekvash provided By fused for) operating activities $ 13145364 3 (246.123) ] 18,860,33) 3 10
Mon cash activities
Capitsl gssels contributed £ 1,721,801 3 - $ 1,721,301 3 -
Capltal assets transferred . - 12,339 12,339 -
Botrowiags under caplial lease 90,891 - . 910891 -
Losson d a0d premi jration 191,982 . (81.382) .
Change in fair value of tovestments 79,330 - 79,330 -

! Thé aceontpaiyiag mekes ang Ao tegiad part oF shia Maleren,
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit

Common stock

Partnerships

Common stock mutual funds
Fixed income mutual funds

Foreign stocks

Foreign stocks mutual funds

Real estate

Assessment receivables

Total asscts

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Amounts held in escrow

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Retiree Only
Defined

Benefit Plan

Pension Trust Agency
Fund Fund

$ 108,850 $ 338,061
- 260,529
822,052 -
525,235 -
2,049,038 -
1,650,499 -
38,339 -
335,705 -
263,275 -
- 805
$ 5,792,993 $ 599,395
$ - b 297
- 599,098
- $ 599,385

§ 5,792,993




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
~ FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS:

Investment Income

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits
Administrative expense

Totgl Deductions

Net increase

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
Beginning of year

End of year

Retiree Only
Defined
Benefit Plan
Pension Trust
Fund

$ 105,845

105,845

11,710
16,871

28,581
77,264

5,715,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Stillwater, Oklahoma
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Stillwater, Oldghoma (the City) is 2 municipal corporation operating under the anthority of
Oklshoma State Statute. The City operates under & city manager form of government, Four elected
members of the City Councii and the Mayor set policy. The City Council employs the ¢ity manager. The
basic financial statements of the funds and fiduciary funds of the City include fhose of separately
sdministered organizations that are controlled by ot dependent on the legislative or executive branches, the
City Couneil and the City Manager, respectively. In accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” as amended by GASB Statement No.
39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units,” the City has presented the
entities which comprise the primary government along with its discretely presented component units in the
basic financial statements. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the basic financial statements present the reporting entity which consists of the primary
government and organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable,

Based on the foregoing criteria, the accounts of the following organizations are included in the City's
reporting entity:
Blended Component Units

The following component units have been presented as blended component units becanse the governing
body is substantially the same as the governing body of the City.

Stillwater Utilities Authority

The Stillwater Utilities Authority (the “SUA™) was created by a trust indenture dated April 1, 1979,
pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 197!, Section 176 to 180.4 and the Oklahoma Trust Act,
designating the City Council as trustee for the benefit of the City in respect to water, sewer and
electric service. The SUA leases, operates and maintains the water, sewer, electrical and sanitation
| utilities pursuant to a renewable lease agreement and an eperation and maintenance contract with the
City. The eperations, maintenance and debt of the SUA are funded from service charges and a one
cent sales tax levied by the City and transferred to the SUA as the SUA has no taxing suthority. The
operations of SUA are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as an enterprise fund.

f The Stillwater Public Works Authority

The Stiliwater Public Works Authority (the “SPWA™) was created by a Declaration of Trust dated
Fanuary 21, 1963, pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1961 and the Oklahoma Trust Act,
designating the City Council as itustee to enter into contractual srrangements to provide services and
physical facilifics to departments of the City and, on behalf of the City, to other goveraments and
residential and commereial residents within the corporate boundaries of the City, Thete ate both
formal and informal leaging arrangements between the SPWA and the City. The SPWA operations
are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as the infernal service fund.
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Stillwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority

The Stilkwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority (the “SIRA™) was established by resolution of -
the City Council on February 19, 1990, pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1981, Sections
176-180.4, inclusive as amended and supplemented (The “Public Trust Act”), Title 11, Oklahoma
Statutes 1981, Sections 40-101 through 40-1135, inclusive, as amended and supplemented (the “Central
Business District Redevelopment Act™). The S8IRA is a public trust with the City as beneficiary and
the City Councilors designated as trustees. The main purpose is the improvement of the economic
climate of the trust beneficiary. Methods of improving the economic climate may include but are not
[imited to, assisting in acquisition of financial resources to improve availability of housing,
redevelopment of blighted areas and other economic activities. The operations of the SIRA are
reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as an enterprise fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Stillwater Medical Center Authority

The Stillwater Medical Center Authority (the “Hospital”) was created by a trust indenture dated
December 14, 1971, pursuant o Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1961, Sections 176 to 180.4, and the
Oklahoma Trust Act, to constrnct, maintain and operate facilities for various types of health care
delivety, for use by the State or any political subdivision or municipality of the State and to lease
properties from the City. The Hospital is administered by a seven member Board of Trustees
consisting of the Mayor, or one other City Councilor, and six other individuals appointed by the City
Council, Although the Hospital Board of Trustees hires hospital management, monitors the activities
of the Hospital and establishes the rates and charges of the Hospital, the City may remove the Hospital
TFrustees at will, The Hospital’s operating and capital expenditures, including debt service, are
financed entirely by the Hospital’s operating income. All indebiedness of the Hospital is the obligation
of the Hospital Trustees, payable solely from the Hospital’s assets. However, appraval from the City
is required for debt issues in excess of 5% of the then outstanding Hospital debt. The City leases land
to the Hospital and is the beneficlary of the trust estate but has no responsibility to fund deficits or
subsidize operations. The Hospital has a December 31 year-end. To obtain separate financial
stetements for the Hospital, contact the Chief Financial Officer, Stillwater Medical Center, 1323 West
Sixth Street, Stillwater, Oklahioma 74074,

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net assets and slatemient of activities display information about the City as a whole, They
include alt funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds, The statements distingnish between
governmenial and business-type activities, (Governinental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged {o external parties for goods o services.

Fund Financial Stateinents;

The reporting entity is organized into funds, each of which is considered o separate accounting entity.
Separate financial statements are provided for the three fund categories: govermnental, proprictary, and
fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds with the governmental and proprietary categories. A
fund Is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or mests the following erileria;
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a. Total assets, liahilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 % of the corresponding fund calegory tofal, and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund
or enterprise fund are at least 5 % of the corresponding total for all governmental finds and
enterprise funds combined,

The funds of the City are described below:
General Fund

The general fund is the primary ogerating find of the City government and will always be classified as
a major fund. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required (o be accounted
for in another fund,

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proveeds of specific revenue sources, other than
capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or otherwise
segregated for accounting purposes. The Community Development Block Grant Fund is the only
gpecial revenue fund active during the fiscal vear ending Juae 30, 2012,

Debt Servige Fund

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of ad-valorem taxes levied by the City
for the payment of general long-term debt principal, Interest and related costs,

Capital Projects Fund

The capital projects funds are used to account for the resources restricted for the scquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or iters and include the following:

Police/Municipal Building
Transportation Improvement Fund

BEnterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in 8 manner similar
to private business enterprizes {a) where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incmred and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, management control, accouniability or ofher purpose.

The reporting enilty includes the following enterprise funds:

Stillwater Utilities Authority
Adrport
Stillwater Indusirial Redevelopment Authority

Internal Service Fund

The internal service fund is the SPWA and accownts for acquisition and financing of physical
fucilities. Debt service requirements are provided from charges billed to the benefited fimd,
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Fiduciary Fund

The Fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
cannot be used to support the City’s programs, The City has the following fiduciary or agency

aceounts.

Defined Benefit Retires Account (Pension Trust Fund)

Property Rehabilitation Escrow

Sanitary Sewer Assessments

Business Improvement District Assessments Public Library Donations
Sidewalk Bscrow Bond Escheatment Escrow
Right Of Way Escrow Alrport Grant Bscrow

Street Assessments Performance Guarantee Escrow

Discretely Presented Component Units

A discretely presented component unit is a separate legal entity whose govemning body (In majority) is

appointed by the Mayor or City Council,

but whose governing body is not substantially the same as

the City Couneil nor is an enfity established to provide services primarily to the primary government.
Since this component unit is not as closely associated with the City as are the blended component
units, it is reported in a discretely presented column on the government-wide financial statements
labeled “Component Unit.” The reporting entlty includes the following discretely presented

coponent unit:
Stillwater Medical Center Authority
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund

Transportation Improvement Fund

Major Enterprise Fund:
Stillwater Utility Authotity (SUA)

Non-Major Funds:
Governmental Funds:

Special Revenne Fund:

Comumumity Development Block Grants

Debt Service Fund
Capital Project Pund;
Police/Municipal Building

Description
See previcus description

Accounts for the expenditures for street projects as
approved by the voters in 2001 and other iransporfation
projects, Financing is provided by the ¥ cent sales tax also
approved by ihe voters,

Description
Accounts for the operations of the eleciric, waier, sewer
and sanitafion system under the Stillwater Utilities
Authority, a publie trust existing under a Trust Indenture
dated April 1, 1979, which was created by an ordinarce of
the City.

Accounts for funds used for the improvements in low-
income portions of the community, Funding is provided by
the Comimanity Development Block Grant Smatl Cities Set
Aside program and local matching funds,

See previcns description
See previous description
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Enterprise Funds:

Alrport Accounts for the operation of the Stillwater Municipal
Adrport including capital additions and improvements
Financed through federal and state grant proceeds and
City contributions.

Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment

Authority Accounts for expendityres for industrial redevelopment.
Financing is provided from federal grants, federal loans,
city confributions and citizen participation.

Internal Service Fund:
Stillwater Public Works Authority Accounts for acquisition and financing of physical
facilities. Debt service requirements are provided from
charges billed to the benefited fund.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

The government-wide statement of net assets and stateinent of activities ave presented using the economic
measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred ot economic asset nsed. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets
and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like {ransactions are recognized when the exchange
tekes place,

The governmenial funds financial statements are presented on the cuwrrent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amournt,
Available means revenues are collectible within the current period or within 60 days of the end of the
fisoal year. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund lability is inowmed,
except for general cbligation bond principal and interest and accrued compensated absences which are
recorded when due.

The City has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions, issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those promouncements confliet with or contradict GASB
pronoyncements in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

Cash and Cash Hquivalents - Cash in bank, cash on hand, and short-term investments with original
maturities of ninety days or less are reported as cash and cash equivalents. The resources of the individual
fonds are general in purpose and combined to form a pool of investments which is managed by the
Director of Finance. These pooled assets (comprised of Treasury repurchase agreements} are stated at
amortized cost if the investment had & maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase and ail long-
term investments are recorded at fair value. All investments held are authorized under Oklahoma State
Statutes, Permissible investtnents inciude direct obligations of the U, S. govemment and agency
securities, certificates of deposit, and savings accounts or savings certificates of savings and Joan
asgociations. Bach fund’s equity in the pooled investments account is reported in the basic financial
statements as cash and cash equivalents.
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Earnings on investments are allocated to the individual funds by a formula based on each fund’s
month-end equity in the pooled investments account (See Note 2).

Assets [nternally Degignated - Assets infernally designated consist of cash and cash equivalents set aside
by the Stillwater Utilities Authority Board of Trustees in anticipation of feture potential operating cost
increases and/or future substantial capital expenditure requirements (rate stabilization asseis) and at the
Board’s discretion may subsequently be vsed for other purposes. As of June 30, 2012, cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of $19,279,729 have been internally designated by the SUA frustees for this
purpose.

Investments - Tnvestments with an original maturity of one year or less are recorded at amortized cost.
Long term investments are recorded at fair value,

Accounts Receivable/Due from Other Governments — In the government-wide statements, receivables
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received, Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable of $883,772 are based upen historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes,
grants, and court fines.

In the fund financial statemenis, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such
as sales tax, franchise tax and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues, since they are usually
both measurable and available. Non-exchange revenues collectible but not available. are deferred in the
fund financial statements in accordance with the modified acerual basis of accounting, but not deferred in
the government-wide financial staterents in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, Proprietary
fund receivables conpsist of all revenves ecarned at yvear-end and not yet received. Ullity accounts
receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable of $258,413 are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable,

Receivables of the Stillwater Wedical Center Authority consists of paiient accounts receivable for service
rendered. The Hospital provides an allowance of $4,890,000 for uncollectible accounts receivable based
upon historical trends and the existing economic conditions.

Restricted Assets - Proceeds from debt and refated sinking fimd accounts and contributions from
governmental grantors to the Enterprise Funds are classified a3 restricted assels, since their use is restricted
by applicable bond indentures and grait agreements. Customer utilities deposits held by the City are
classified as restricted assets.

Inventories - Inventories, consisting primarily of materials and supplies, are stated at weighted average
cost. The consumption method of accounting is used by the governmental funds; therefore, inventory
purchases are recorded in these funds as expenditures as they are used, Inventories are adjusted to annual
physical count, Inventories of proprietary funds consist primarily of materials, supplies and fuel oil and are
reported at the lower of average cost or matket,

Bond Premiums/Discounts and Issuance Costs - Debt discount, premsivm, and issue costs are amortized
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the
applicable debt. Amortized debt discount and premium are reported as a component ol intersst expense,
while amortized debt issue costs are reported separately as non-operating expense,

Capital Assets - The accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment (capital assets} depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental find operations and similar discretely presented component
uilit operations or proprietary fund operations and similar discretely presented compenent unit operations
angd whether they are reported in the govermment-wide or fund {inancial statements. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense incurted by business-type acHvities
was §886,077. Of this amount, $160,969 was capitalized on construction in progress during 2012,
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The City acquired water storage space in 1981 for $1,530,403 which is reported in the SUA fund and
business-type activities colummn o the government-wide financial statements as a capital asset. The water
storage space acquired is considered to have an indefinite life. As a result, no amortization will be taken
on the space rights.

Unamortized Togs Due to Bond Refunding - A non-cash gain or logs resulting from the refunding of bonds

is amortized using the straight-line method over the original life of the defeased bonds. Loss on
defeasance is reported as a component of interest expense.

Govemment-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, property, plant and equipment are accounted for as capital
assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable,
except for donated capital assets which ere recorded at their estirsated fair value at the date of donation.
The threshold for capitalization of assets is $5,000. All land acquired by the city is capitalized.

Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental activities’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets
{dating back to July 1, 1980) have been valued at estitnated historical cost.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Staternent of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflectsd in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is
provided over the assets’ estireated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The range of estimated nseful lives by type of asset is as follows;

Estimated
Class of Asset ‘Useful Life
Buildings 10-70 Years
Other Improvements 2-70 Years
Egquipment and vehicles 1-58 Years
Infrastructure 25-50 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund finaccial statements, capital assels used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures wpon acquisition. Capital assets used in propnetary find operations are
accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Long-term Debt

Accounting treatment of long-termi debi vaties depending upon the source of repayment and whether the
debt is reported in the governmeni~wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and similar discretely presented compenent unit
resources and business-type and similar discretely presented component unit resources are reported as
lighilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of accrued
compensated absences, general obligation bonds payable, capital leases payable, notes payable and
revenue bonds payable.

Long-term debt of povernmenial funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements,
Payment of principal and interest is reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary funds is the
same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

Sick Pay - Employees may accroe a maximum of 1,000 hours of sick leave, An employee with five or
more years of service who retires or resigns shall receive a bonus credit of 10% of the acoumulated unused
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sick leave to be computed at the rate of pay being recelved by the employes at retirement or resignation
date. Employees with ten to thirty-five years of service receive a bonus credit ranging from 12.5% to
35%,

Vacation Pay - Employees are credited with vacation at various rates depending on length of employment.
Nonuniformed employees may accumulate and carry over to subsequent years up to 200.16 hours of
vacation. Police officers can carry over to subsequent years up to 275 hours of vacation. Firefighters can
earry over to subsequent years up to 381,96 hours of vacation. Upon termination, employees are paid for
unused vacation,

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide
statements. The current portion of this debi is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absences to the extent they have matured.
The proprietary funds report the lability as it is incurred. As of year-end, there is no liability reported in
the fund financial siatements. Compensated absences are paid as they are incurred by the applicable find
charged with the employee’s compensation.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue primarily consists of inavailable property taxes and munieipal court fines.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Equity is classified s net assets and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes,
leases or other borrowings that are atiributable o the acquisition, consiruction, or improvement of
those assets, .

2. Restricted net assels - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) externat
groups such as ereditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2} law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3, Unrestricted net assets « All other net assets that do not meet the definifion of “restricted” or “lovested
in capital assets, net of related debt™,

1t is the City’s poliey to first use restricted net assels prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and vnrestricted net agsets are available,

Fund Financial Statemenits:

As prescribed by GASB Statement No. 54, governmental funds report fund balance classifications
based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor cousiraints on the specific purposes
for which amounts in the funds can be spent. As of June 30, 2012, fiund balances for governmental
funds are made up of the following:

Nonspendable fund balgnce — includes amounts that are (a} not in spendable form, or (b) legally or
contractually required to remain intact. The “not in spendable form™ criterion inclades items that ave
not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepald amounts, and long-term notes
receivable,

Restricted fund balance — includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by external vesource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation, Restrictions may
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effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed fund balance — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by
a formal action (resclution) of the City's highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council.
Commitrents may be changed or lifted only by the City taking the same formal action that imposed
the constraint originally (for example: resolution or ordinance).

Assigned fund balance — comprised of amounis intended to be used by-the City for specific purposes
that are neither restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by (1) the City’s Council or (2} a body or
official to which the City’s Council has delegated the anthority to assign amounis t¢ be used for
specific purposes.

Unassigned fimd balance — is the residual classification for the General Pund and includes all amounts
not contained in other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose.

Govermmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as non-
spendable, restricted, comumitted, assigned and unassigned. Non-spendable fund balance includes
inventory items that are not expected to be converted to cash, Restricted fund balances include resources
with extemally imposed constraints such as debt covenants, certain donation agreements, and enabling
legislation that is legally enforceable. Committed fund balance includes resources that ate constrained in
their use by resolution of the council. Council may modify or rescind a fund balance commitment by
resolution, Assigned fund balance includes resourees that are constrained by management at the direction
of the council. Unassigned fund balances are those residual resources that are spendable and are not
restricted, committed, or sssigned. Propristary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-
wide statements. -

The City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditureis incuzred for purposes for
which both resiricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. Additionally, the City considers
committed, then assigned, thea unassigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred
for purposes for which amounts in any of these wnrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES

Sales tax

The City levies a three and one-half cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City, The sales tax is
coliected by the Qklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the
Tax Commission. The Tax Commission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection
by vendors. The entire sales tax is recorded as reverue within the General Fumd. Upon receipt, the
General Fund distributes the dedicated portion of the sales tax as follows:

1. 2 cents retained by the General Fund for operations.

2, 1 cent transferred to the Stillwater Utilities Authority as required by revenue bond indentures,
The proceeds are used in accordance with the trust indenture and current bond indentures.

3, Y cent transferred to the Transportation Fund to be used for the projects approved by the
voters in September 2001, other transportation projects and, as approved by voters in May
2007, debt service related to fransportation projects.

Property tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be
levied to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonds and court-assessed judgments. Property
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taxes aftach an enforceable lien on property as of Januvary 1. Taxes are levied annually on November 1
and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by March 31, The Tax Assessor’s office bills and
collects the property taxes and remits to the City its portion. Property taxes not paid prior to April are
considered delinquent,

Property tax levied during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was used to fund the annual debt service
requirements of the 2010 General Obligation Refunding bonds.

Program Revenues

In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside
the City"s taxpayers are reported as program revenues, The City has the following program revenues in
each activity:

Public safety Fire and police fines assessed for raining, fire run
fees, operating and capital gronts from the
Department of Homeland Security, U.8. Department
of Justice, Oklahoma Highway Safety Grants and the
Department of Juvenile Affairs and donations from
outside contributors

Recreation and culture ' Park and recreation foes; capital and operating grants
from the Oklahoma Departinent of Transporiation,
Department of Wildlife, and donations

Genetal government Property rentals and donations
Fingncial administration Licenses and municipal court fines collected
Streets and sewers Capita! grants, motor fuel tax and commercial

vehicle tax revemies

Health and welfare Ambulance fees, permits, grants from the Oklahoma
Department of Commerce and the Oklahoma
Departiment of Porestry

Beonomic Development Donations

All other governmental revenues ars reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if yestricted for a specific purpose.

Operating Revennes and Expenses

Operating reveniues and expenses for proprietary funds and similar discretely presented component units
are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also
includes all revenues and expenses not refafed to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or
investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the povernment-wide financial statements, expenses are reported on the accrual basis and are classified
by function for both governmental and business-type aclivities.
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In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures/expenses are classified as follows:
Governmental Funds-By Character; Current {further classified by function)
Capital outlay
Drebi service

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resourpes,
Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net assets
and statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial
statemenis have been eliminated or reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements:

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the goveramental and proprietary find categories is reported
as follows in the fund financial statements:

I. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund
receivables and payables.

2. Toterfund serviges - sales or purchases of geods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. _

3. TInterfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as

- adjustmenss to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds,

4, Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one find to another where repayment is not expected

are reported as fransfers in and out.

Government-Wide Pinancial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide statements as
follows:

1. . Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financia! statements as interfand receivables
and payables are eliminaied n the governmental and business-type activities columns of the
statement of net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmentsl and
business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2. Internal acfivities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
eliminated in the govemnment-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers-
Internal Activities.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to take estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounis of assets and Habifities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting perlod. Actual results could differ from those estimates,



(2) STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABLITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and ils component units are subject to various
federal, state and focal laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with
significant laws and regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows:

FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

The City complies, in all material respects, with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the
use of separate funds, The legally required funds used by the City include the following;

Fund Required by
Debt Service Fund State Law
Stillwater Uttlities Autherity Trust Indenture
Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority  Trust Indenturs
Stillwater Public Works Awthority Trust Indenture

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by most finds, ag discussed in Note 1. In
addition, cash and investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

It is the City’s policy to use state statutes (as they relate to municipal deposits and investmenis) as the
City’s deposit and investment guide. Therefore, the City collateralizes 100% of all deposit amounts,
including interest, not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as
collateral include U.S, government issues, 1S, government insured securities, State of Olklahoma
bonds, and bonds of any Oklahoma county or school district. The City prefers and requests U.S.
povernmental securities as collateral. ’

Public trusts created under Q.3. Title 60, are not subject to the statutory investment Himitations and are
primarily governed by any resirictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30,
2012, the City and il public trusts complied, in all material respects, with these investment
restrictions. '

REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements.
The primary resiricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Lesal Restirictions of Use

Sales Tax See note 1

(Jasoline Bxcise & Commercial Vehicle Tax Street and Alley Purposes

“ E-911 Revenue E-011 Emergency Services Purposes
Ad-valorem Tax Debt Service on Bonds and Judgments
‘r‘ Grants Revenue ' Basged upos Individual Grant Agreements
“ Hatel/Motel Tax EBconomic Development
; Storm Water Fee Storm Water Management Purposes
Fire and Police Training Fee Training of the fire and police departments
For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City complied, in all material respects, with these tevenue
resirictions.

45




R

+ DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS

General Obligation Debt

Article 10, Sections 26 and 27 of the Oklahoma Constitution limits the amount of outstanding general
obligation bonded debt of the municipality for non-utility or non-street purposes to no more than 10%
of net assessed valuation, For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City complied with this resiriction.

" Other Long=Term Dbt

Ag required by the Oklzhoma State Constitution, the City (excluding public trusts) may not incur any
indebtedness that would require payment from resources beyond the current fiscal year revenue,
without obtaining voter approval. For the year ended June 30, 2012, no such debt was incurred by the

City.

Revenue Bond Debt

The bond indenture relating to the reveuus bond issue of the SUA contains a number of restrictions or
covenants that are financial related. These include covenants such as a required flow of funds through
special accounts, required reserve account balances, and revenue bond debt service coverage
requirements. The following schedule presents a brief summary of the most significant requirements
and the SUA’s level of compliance thereon as of Tune 30, 2012,

Requirement - Level of Compliance

a.  Flow of funds: All required accounts have been established
Sales Tax Account and are used per Bond Indenture requirements,
Bond Account _

b. Reserve Account Requirement: The Bonds are secured by a Surety Policy issued

by Ambac Assurance Corporation in lieu of
capitalizing a Bond Fund Reserve,

¢. Revenue Bond and Oklahoma For the year ended June 30, 2012, available
Water Resotrces Board Note revenues plus sales tax transfer, was
Requirement $73,006,344; bond requirement is operating

and maintenance excluding depreciation of
$45,583,965 plus 125% of next years principal
and interest or $4,052,388. Hxcess coverage
was $23,369,991 or 577% of required principal
and interest coverage.

FUND EQUITY/NET ASSET RESTRICTIONS

Deficit Prohibition

Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in
any individual fund. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City incurred a fund balance defict in the
Community Development Block Grant fund.
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(3) DETAILED NOTES-TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

The following notes present detail information to support the amonnts reporied in the basic financial
statements for various assets, Habilities, equity, revenues and expendituzes/expenses.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Denpgsiis

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposiis may not be
retorned to it. The City’s deposit poliey for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions
of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository inserance; U.S. government
issues; U.S. govertnment insured securities; State of Oklahoma bonds; or bonds of any county or school
distriet of the State of Oklahoma.,

At June 30, 2012 the City’s barnk balance of §39,514,536 was not exposed to custodial credit risk. At
December 31, 2011, $16,611,000 of the Hospital’s bank balance of $21,162,000 was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Interest Rate Risk

Intesest rate risk is the risk that changes in matket interesi rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s investment policy does not address interest rate risk. The Hospital's investment
policy generally limits its investment portfolio to maturities of three to five years,

Tnvestments

The City may legally invest in dizect obligations of the U.S, government and agency securities, certificates
of deposit and savings accounts or savings certificates of savings and loan associations.

The Hospital may legally invest in direct obligations of and other obligations guaranteed as to principal by
the U.S. Treasury and U.5. agencies and instrumentalities and in bank repurchase agreements. Tt may also
invest to a limited extent in corporate bonds and equity securities,

At June 30, 2012 the City had the foliotwing investments and maturities:

. More

Type Rating Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

Cettificates of deposit e $ 6757258 0§ 6,757,238 - 5 - $ -

Mutual Fund (govt/treasary) AAA 79,495 79,495 - - -

FHLMC AAD 6,980,900 - - - 6,980,900
13,817,653 & 6,836,753 % - 5 - 5 6,980,900

Pized income mutual funds  ***  Not avail, 1,650,499

Domestic and internationa! equities 3,770,369

Real estate 263,275

519,501,796
** Not subject to rating .
#*F+ Fixed income investments are administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Refirement Fund, Maturity
information is not readily available.
(1) In August 2611 Standard and Peor's (S&F) downgraded the U5, governement's debt rating

to AA. Additionally, S&P downgraded debt securities issued by the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) to AA because of its tmplicif reliance on the U.8. governement.,
Conecurrent with this downgrade, the other rating agencies, Moody's aud Fitch, both reaffirmed

their highest credit ratings of thesa securities.
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At December 31, 2011, the Hospital’s investments had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities in Years

More
Type Fair Value  Less than | 1-3 6-10 than 10
Guaranteed investment coniracts ~ § 1,245,000 § - $ - § 1245000 § -
1S, treasury obligations 308,852 - 153,869 53,836 101,147
U.5. agencies obligations 3,550,122 - 856,719 264,955 2,428,448
Corporate bonds 3,540,340 1,400 751,810 2,078,020 709,110
Money market mutual funds 3,645,839 3,645,839 . - - -
Municipal bonds 10,887 - - 10,887 .
Murtual funds 5,924,218 5,924,218 - - -
18,225,258 § 9,571,457 § 1,762,398  § 3,652,698  § 3,238,705
Corporate stacks 6,971,943
Accrued investment ingome 81,658
EREEN

Invegtment Credit Risk - Invesiment credit risk is the risk that the {ssuer or other counterparty to an invesirnent

will not fulfill its obligations.

The City’s investment policy dues not address credit risk. The City’s defined benefit plan invests in
domestic comumon stocks with ratings ranging from C to A+ as well as some that do not have a rating
available and some that are not rated. The City’s defined bensfit government/treasury market mutual fund
is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Certain investments of the City’s defined benefit plan, whick
include partnerships and open end mutual funds, and fixed income mutual fands, were not rated by 8 & P.
Foreign stocks of the City’s defined benefit plan have ratings from B to B+ with some that do not have a
rating available and some that are not rated. The real estate investments of the City’s defined benefits plan
has ratings tanging from B- to A+ with some that do not have a rating,

The Hogpital’s policy ig to Hmit its investments te a credil rating of no less than investment grade and an
overall weighted-average rating of A by Standard and Poor’s (S & P) or an equivalent rating by another
reputable institution. The corporate bonds of the Hospital have ratings ranging from BRB o AA+ by
Standard and Poor’s. The money market mutual finds of the Hospital are rated AAAm by Standard and
Poor’s. Certain Hospital investments, which include goaranteed investment contracts, U.S. agencies
obligations, tunicipal bonds and mutual funds wete not rated by 8 & P,

Congentration of Credit Rigk - The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one
issuer. The Hospital’s investmient policy limits equity investments in any one issuer, other than the U.8.
government or its agencies, to 10% of the market value of the fixed income portfolio and to 5% of the
market value of the ecuity portfolio. At December 31, 2011, no investments exceeded 5% of the total
value of all Mospital investments,

Custodial Risk ~ Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy does not address custodial risk, However,
the City’s investments are in the City’s name, thus the City has no custodial rigk at June 30, 2012, The
Hospital’s investment policy does not address how these securities are to be held,
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Summary of Carryving Values
Schedule of Deposits and Invesiments:

Primary Component
Cairying Amounts Government Units Total
Deposits $ 45,602,893 8 21,628,573 § 67,231,466
Investments 19,501,796 25,278,861 44,780,657

$ 65,104,689 § 46,507,434 $ 112,012,123

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
Included in the following captions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,075,753 % 17,361,359 § 62,437,112
Tuvestments 10,268,357 26,928,253 37,196,610
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,368,996 967,748 4,336,744
Restricied investments - 1,650,074 1,650,074
Fiduciary funds ‘ 6,391,583 - 6,391,583
Total $ 65,104,689 $ 46,907,434 § 112,012,123

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The accounts receivable of the govermmental activities consist of franchise taxes, police fines, E-
911, rural fire charges, and stormwater fee receivables. Police fines are 29 percent of the total.
Cable franchise taxes are 17 percent of the total while stormwater fee receivables are § percent of
the total. The remaining receivables are intergovernmental and due from various customers. The
accounts receivable of the business-type activities are amounts due from utility custorners. Al
receivables are expected 1o be coliected within one vear.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accounts payable balances are payables to vendors. Accrued liabilities are salaries and wages
payable as well as accrued insurance where applicable.

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Certain assets of the SUA are restricted in their use by bond and note indentures. Cash and cash
equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $1,366,601 at June 30, 2012, was testricted in
use to the service of debt.

Certain cash and cash equivalents of the SUA are restricted by agreement for the purpose of
. acquiring necessary easements related to water line upgrades for an ares of serviee purchased
i from a mral water district. As of June 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents, classified as non-
: current, of $34,756 was restricted for this purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents received by the SUA from Rural Water Corporation No, 3 are
: restricted by agreement for the purpose of completing upgrades, improvements, and/or
1? expansions of the water distribution system in specified areas. As of June 30, 2012 cash and cash
equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $235,793 was restricted for this purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents received from customers as a water tie-on charge for new connections
to the water distribution system are restricted by an ordinance of the City for the purpose of
finaneing future construction of extensions and improvements to the waler distribution system of

|
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the City. Cash and cash equivalents, classified as non-current, in the amount of $451,150 at June
30,2012 were rostricted for this purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents received from utility customers for payment of the Western Payne
County Ambulance Trust Authority (WPCATA) subscription fee are restricted in their nse. Per
agreement, the SUA remits to the WPCATA, on a monthly basis, all money collected from said
charge. As of June 30, 2012 cash and equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $73,930
were restrieted for thiz purpose,

Customer deposits received for water or electric service are restricied in their use toward the
enstorner’s final bill. As of June 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $1,186,766
of which $675,034 is classified as curent and $511,732 is classified as non-curtent, have been
restricted for customer deposits.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity was as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmenial Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction-in-progress .
Total capital assets not befng depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Crther improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and equipmernt
Total accunmulated depreciation
Other capital assets, vet
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Intangible agsets
Construclion-in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and eguipment
Intangible assets
Utility plant in serviee
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreeiation for;
Buildings '
Other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Utility plant in service
Less amortization for intangible assets;
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization
Orther capitat assets, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance

Balance
June 30, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012
$ 7435074 § . 3 - 7:435,074
1,718,663 5,898,476 276,203 7,341,936
9,154,737 5,898,476 276,203 14,777,010
24,152 309 - - 24,152,309
150,858,422 771,443 - 151,629,865
20,613,777 279,213 1,457,913 19,435,077
195,624,508 1,050,656 1,457,913 195,217,251
7,560,809 535,432 - 8,096,241
27,027,181 5,475,299 - 92,502,480
17,421,156 641,942 1,235,205 16,827,803
112,009,146 6,652,673 1,233,295 117,426,524
83,615,362 (5,602,011 222,618 77,790,727
$92,770,099 § 296459 % 4983821 92,567,737
$ 1,714,595 3 - $ - 1,714,595
1,530,403 . . 1,530,403
7,691,741 3,619,019 4,318,357 6,992,403
10,936,738 3,619,019 4,318,357 10,237,401
9,987,465 589,259 - 10,676,724
25,249,046 13,425 . 25282471
20,658,874 1,289,106 288,628 21,659,352
74,054 . - 74,054
176,094,361 7,193,838 558470 182,729,729 -
232,063,800 9,205,628 847,098 240,422,330
3,395,734 280,924 - 3,676,658
13,596,197 774,078 - 14,370,275
14,683,400 025,566 266,665 15,342,301
93,879,731 5,279,130 453,976 98,704,885
74,054 - - 74,054
125,629,116 7,259,698 726,641 132,168,173
106,434,684 1,945,930 126,457 108,254,157
$ 117,371,423 $ 5,564,949 $ 4,444 814 118,491,558
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COMPONENT UNITS:

Stillwater Medical Center Authority:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Land improvements
Building, improvements and fixed equipment
Major moveable equipment
Total other at eapital assets
Less accumulated depreciation:
Othier capital assets, net
Capital assets, net

Balance Bajance
December 31, 2010 Increases Decreases December 31, 2011
$ 2,115409 § - % - % 2,115,409
2,701,738 2,191,290 4,138,067 754,961
4,817,147 2,191,290 4,138,067 2,870,370
1,462,807 11,737 156,613 1,317,931
47,212,772 4,368,851 378,069 51,203,554
47,696,820 3,503,685 394,979 50,805,526
06,372,309 7,884,273 928,661 103,327,011
61,333,609 4,799,346 881,809 65,242,146
35,038,790 3,093,927 47,852 38,084,865

$ 39,855937  $5,285217 § 4185919

$ 40,955,035

Depreciation expense was charged to functfons in the statement of activities as follows:

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Public Safety 5 362,226
Recreation and Culture 641211
General Government 395,896
Streets and Sewers 5,184 255
Health and Welfare 39,083

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities $ 6,652,673

Business-type Activities:
Stillwater Utilities Authority

Airport {includes amortization of intangible assets) 816,006
Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Autherity 1,584
Total depreciation expense for business-type activities $ 7,259,698

Component Units:
Stillwater Medical Center Authority

$ 6,442,108

§ 4,790,346
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Advances from Advances to
~ Non Major
Enterprise funds
Stillwater Public Works Authority hi} 205,000

Stillveater Public Works Authority advanced funds to Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority as a
grant/loan requirement from the Oklahoma Department of Commerce. This advance will not be paid
within one year,

Dug from Due to
Stillwater
Utilities
CGeneral Fund Authority
General Fund b - $ 378,09 5 373,090
Non Major Govetnmental funds 10,928 - 10,928
Transportation Improvement fund 2,971 - 2971
Non Major Preprietary funds 190,064 - 190,064
Stillwater Utilities Aathority 297,316 - 297316

$ 301,279 $ 378,080 $ 879,369

The interfund balances result from the normal operations of the various funds. All customer wtility accounts
are cellected and deposited into the Stillwater Utilities Auathority. The other funds routinely make payments to
the City to cover payroll, vendor payments, health insurance costs, workers® compensation costs and other
operating costs, Generally these charges are paid within a month of their incurreace.

i INTERFUND TRANSFERS

i Interfund transfers were made to fund cash shortages in the various funds as needed. These shortages
: oceurred due to operating expenditures exceeding fund revenves, Interfund fransfers reported in the fund
financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

; Transters In Traasfers Qut
, Transporation Non major Stillwater
General Improvernent  Governmental Utilities
Fund Fuad Funds Authority Total

General Fund ¥ - 3 13,994  $ 294,329 § 12,393,813 § 12,702,136
; . Transp. Inipr. Fund 3,424,570 - - 4,683,640 8,108,210
5 Stillwater Utilities Authority 6,849,141 1,712,285 . - 8,561 426

Non Major Enterprise Funds - 293,971 293,971

$ 10567682 $ 1,726,279 § 294329 § 17,007,453 8 29,665,743
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
govarnmental activities, amounts to be repaid from business-type activities, and amownts to be repaid

from component units.

Governmental Activities:

At June 30, 2012, the govermmental activities long-term debt consisted of the following:

General Obligatien Bonds:

$8,390,000 Refunding Bonds of 2010, due in annual
installments of ranging from $795,000 to $820,000 with
a final payment of $350,000 due June 1, 2021, interest rate

of 4.00% $ 6,790,000
Flug Unamortized premium 569,342
Total general obligation Bonds 359
Current portion $ 820,000
Non-current portion $.,539.342
Total general obligation Bonds 359
Accrued Compensated Absences-Governmental Activities:
Current portion $ 118467
Nom-current portion 1,980,633
Total acerued compensated absences $2.099.100
Stitlwater Public Works Anthority
Retindable Grant Obligations,
Grant from Oklahoma Department of Commerce in the original amount of
$400,000 with 0% per annum. The final installment will be October 31, 2023.
This obligation is collateralized by a lease between SIRA and Nomadics, Tuc.
Total refondable grant obligations $205,0
Current portion § 20,000
Non-current portion 185,000
Total refundable graut obligations $ 205,000

Business-iype Activities:

Asg of June 30, 2012 the long-term liabilities payable from business-type activities consisted of the

following:
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Stillwater Utilities Authority:

Notes Payable:

2002 Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRDB) SRF Note Payable dated
February 28, 2002, original amount of $3,413,483 with no inierest plus an
administrative fee of 0,5%, semiannnal installments of principal commencing
March 13, 2002, through Septernber 2021,

2002 OWRB SRF Note Payable dated December 19, 2002, original amount of $4,876,086
with no interest pius an administrative fee of 0.5%, semiannual installments of principal
commencing March 15, 2003, througl September 15, 2022,

2005 OWRB fized interest rate Note Payable dated June 29, 2005, original amounnt of
$7,620,000 with interest at 2.6% plus an administrative fee of 0.5%, semiannuval
installments of principal and interest commencing September 15, 2003, through
March 15, 2025,

2007 Revenue Note Payable dated December 5, 2007, original amount of
$6,010,000, sscured by dedicated V% cent sales tax revenues, interest rate is
3.68%, semiannual installments of principal and interest commencing
December 1, 2008, through December 1, 2016

2009 OWRB DWSRE Note Payable dated November 24, 2009, original amount of
$1%,645,000, eligible for $2,000,000 principal forgiveness from American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act grant funds, secured by utility revenues, semiannual principal
instellments cotrmence no later than March 15, 2013, 2.84% interest plus an
administrative fee of 0.5%

2009 OWRB CWSRF Note Payable dated November 24, 2009, not to exceed
$1,875,000, eligible for $378,999.81 principal forgiveness from American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act grant funds, secured by utility revenues, semiannual principal
installments commence no later than March 15, 2011, 2.34% interest plas an
administrative fee of 0.5%

2010 Revenue Note dated September 23, 2010, original amount of $6,075,000,
secured by dedicated ¥ cent sales tax revenmes, interest rate is 2.33%,
semiannual installments of principal and interest commencing December 1, 2010
through December 1, 2016

United States Army Corp of Engineers Note dated September 26, 1980, original
amennt of $1,330,403, 3.222% interest, annual inferest and principal installments
commencing Anguat 27, 1984 through August 27, 2034

Total notes payable

Current portion
Non-current portion

Total notes payable
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2,559,945

5,473,441

3,505,000

7,371,047

1,106,173

4,555,000

967.598
$27,159,600

$2,773,281
24,386,328

$27,159,609
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Revenue Bonds:

2005 Refunding series bonds dated May 11, 2003, original issue amount of
$12,965,000, secured by utility revenues, interest rates range from 3.25% to 5.0%,
semiannual interest installments commencing October 1, 2005, through

October 1, 2012, arnual principal installments commencing October 1, 2005,
through October 1, 2012,

Plus Unamertized premium

Less Unamortized logs on defeasance
Total revenue bonds
Currert portion
Non-current portion

Total revenue bonds payable

Capital Lease Obligations:

Total machinery and equipment financed by capital lease ebligations
Less accumulated depreciation
Net assets financed by leases

1,585,000
24,598
(3,990)

$1,605,608

$1,603,608

31,605,608

$3,385,360
(846,306)
$2.539.054

Berrowings have been advanced pursuant to a credit agreement with Banc of America Leasing and Capital
LLC that provided, until September 30, 2012, for the purchase of cquipment. In Sepiember, 2011, the
apreement was amended to decrease the maximum equipment cost approved for financing from $2.3
miflion to $2 million. A fixed interest rate is determined at the time of funding., Total borrowing under
this credit agreement at June 30, 2012 was $0.4 million. Certain schedules under the Bank of America,
N.A. master lease agresment were assigned to Capital One Public Financing, LLC on March 22, 2012.

Those schedules are denoted with a (*) below.

$553,307 capital lease with Capital One for equipment; fixed interest rate
of 4.09%, semiantmal installments commencing December 15, 2006, through
June 15,2014, %

$96,543 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.4412%, monthly installments commencing April 13, 2010
through march 15,2013 # '

$20,161 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.0902%, monthly installzzents commencing April 15, 2010
through March 15,2015 *

$391,032 capiial leage with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1942%, monthly instaliments commencing Apzil 36,2010
through March 30, 2015 #

$29,700 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest raie of 2.5322%, monthly installments commencing April 30, 2010
through March 30, 2013 *
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$ 155,553

24,302

11472

222,761
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$481,057 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.2397%, monthly installments commencing May 15, 2010
through April 15,2015 *#

$201,802 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1617%, monthly installments commencing June 15, 2010
through June 15, 2015 *

$54,783 capital leaso with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1487%, monthly installmenis cominencing June 15, 2010
through May 15, 2015 *

812,524 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.9342%, monthly installments commencing July 30, 2010
through June 30, 2015 *

$245,932 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.8172%, monthly installments
commencing August 30, 2010 through July 30, 2015 *

$223,024 capital lease with Capital Oune for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing September 30, 2010 through August 30, 2015 *

$43,166 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6677%, monthly installments
commencing October 15, 2010 through September 15, 2015 *

$313,375 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing January 15, 2011 through December 15, 2015 *

$15,000 capital lease with Cagital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.9082%, monthly installments
commencing April 30, 2011 through March 30, 2016 #*

$19,548 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing July 30, 2011 through Fune 30, 2016 *

$124,760 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.4337%, monthly instaliments
commencing October 30, 2011 through September 30, 2016 *

$141,282 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,

fixed interest rate of 2.1552%, nonthly installments
commencing November 15, 2011 through Qctober 15, 2014 *
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122,971

32,944

7,733

155,724

144,668

28,708

223,696

11,451

15,843

107,064
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$258,550 capital lease with Capital One for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.5442%, monthly instaliments
commencing January 15, 2012 through December 15, 2016 *

$170,785 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2,1422%, monthly installments
commencing February 29, 2012 through January, 30, 2015

$123,127 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.4857%, monthly installments
commencing February 29, 2012 through January, 30, 2017

$92,387 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.4597%, monthly installments
commencing June 15,2012 fhrough May, 15, 2017

Other eapital lease borrowings:

$218,439 capital lease with Empire Financial Services, Inc. for equipment;
fixed interest rate of 4.49%, monthly installments commencing July 7, 2008,
through June 7, 2013,

$185,760 capiial lease with Capital One Public Funding, LLC for equipment;
freed interest rate of 5.06%, semiannual installments commencing
Deacember 21, 2008, through June 21, 2013
Total capital leases
Current portion
Nop-curtent portion

Total capital leazes

Accrued Compensated Absences — Business-type activities:

Current portion
Non-current portion

Total accrued compensated absences

Component Unit:
Stillwater Medical Center Authority

Revenue Bonds

2005 Series A Revenue bonds original issue amount of $12,715,000, dated
May 2005, secured by gross revenues and frustee-held assets, inferest

vates from 4.50% to 5.25%, principal payable annually and interest semiannuaily,

through May 15, 2019,
Less loss on bond defeasance
Plus original fssue premium

Net bond issue
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234,148

152,381

115418

90,938

2 168

$825,022
1,522,146
$2.347,168

5 60,009
707,549

4767558

$8,135,000
{430,489)
149,560
$7.854,071



2003 series Revenue bonds original issue amount of $7,000,000 dated

May 2003 secured by gross revenues and trustee held assets, interest at 5.625%,
principal paid annually and interest paid semiannually beginning May 15, 2018,
through May 15, 2023.

Total revenue bonds

Current portion
Non-current portion

Total revenue bonds

Capital lease oblipations
Total capital asseis financed by capital [ease obligations
Loss accumulated depreciation

Net assets financed by capital lease obligations

Capital lease issued for equipment, interest rate of 4.04%
Current portion
Non-eurrent portion

Total capital lease obligations

Applicability of Fedoral Arbiirage — Debt issuances of the City and Authority issued after the Tax Reform
Act of 1986 are subject to the federal arbitrage regulations. The arbitrage rebate regulations require that
all earnings from the investment of gross proceeds of a bond issue in excess of the amount that could have
been earned had the yield on the investment been equal to the yield on the bonds be remitted to the federal
government. These carry strict penaltiss for non-compliance including taxability of interest retroactive to
the date of the issue. The City’s management believes the City is in compliance with these rules and

regulations,
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¥ 861,692
13,992,379

$14.854.071

$3,099,762
(1,691,307
§ 1.408455

$273.473
$273,747

27374



The following is a surnmary of the changes in long-term Habilities:

Arnounts
Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 200} Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year
Type of Debt
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General obligation Bonds $ 8247737  § - $ 888395 § 7,359,342 $ 820,000
Refundable grant ebligations 230,442 - 34,442 205,000 20,060
Accrued compensated absences 1,980,633 2,221,418 2,102,951 2,099,100 118,467
Other post employment benefits obligations 1,523,294 335,981 38262 1,821,012 -
Total governrnental activities 3 §1,991,106 8 2,557,399 § 3064,050 8 11,484,455 3 958,467
Business-type Activities
Capital Jease obligations $ 2,127,695 5 919,801 & 691,418 3§ 2,347,188 $ 825,022
Wales payable 27,062,465 2,685,611 2,588,467 27,859,609 2,773,281
Revenue bonds payable; net 4,877,590 - 3,271,982 1,605,608 1,605,608
Refundable grant obligation 153,322 30,306 21,714 23,914 23,914
Customer deposits 1,146,107 748,911 696,572 1,198,446 675,034
Accrued compensated absences 765,519 776,280 774,241 767,558 60,009
Other post employment benefits obligations 601,970 143,992 16,397 728,565 -
Total business-type activities ¥ 36,596,668 § 5,295,991 $ 8,060,791 33,831,868 % 5,962,868
Ameunts
Balance Balance Due Within
Component Unit: December 31, 2010 Additions Reductions  Decamber 31, 2011 One Year
Stillwater Medical Center Authority
Revenue bonds payable; net b 15,670,763 § - $ 816,692 § 14,854,071 $ 861,692
Capital lease obligations 912,273 - 638,526 273,747 273,747
$ 16,583,036 3 - $ 1,455218 § 15,127,818 §  1,135439

For governmental activities, compensated absences and net OPEB obligations are generally Houidated by
the general fund,

Anunual Debt Service Requirements-Primary Goverpment

The anmal debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and {nterest, for long-term liabilities
as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Governmertal
Activities
General Oblgation Refundable Grant
Obligations
Year Ending '
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 820,006 § 271,600 § 20,000 -
2014 815,000 238,800 20,000 -
2015 810,000 206,200 20,000 -
2016 865,000 173,800 20,000 -
2017 800,000 141,600 20,000 -
2018-2022 2,740,000 247,000 30,000 -
2023 - - 25,000 -
Total 86,790,000  $1,279,000 § 205,000 -

60



Business-Type Activities

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Capital leases Notes Payable
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Pringipal Interest
2013 3 1,585000 8 39,623 825,022 § 57980 § 2773281 § 721,306
2014 - - 718,064 33,880 3,083,104 644,159
2015 - - 558,600 13,041 3,160,406 560,883
2016 - - 178,548 3,751 3,247,735 475,640
2017 - . 66,934 576 2,341,181 387,043
2018-2022 . - . - 7,031,746 1,357,121
20232027 - - . - 4,486,484 514,207
2028-2032 . . - - 866,086 71,152
2033-2037 - - - - 169,586 11,044
Total $ 1585000 & 39,625 2347168  § 110,128 § 27,159,609  § 4742555
Component Unit
Yeur Eading Revenue Bonds Capital Leases
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 500,000 5 789,350 I L A S A
2013 950,000 740,788 - -
2014 490,000 689,862 - =
2015 1,050,000 536,312 - -
2016 1,100,000 579,875 - -
20172021 6,350,000 2,061,751 - -
2022-2026 3,795,000 342,280

Total $ 15135000 § 5840218 $ 273747 8 271

(4} EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHLER BENEFIT PLANS
Nogpuniformed Employees

All fuil-time wonuniformed City employees are provided pension benefits through a defined contribution
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The employee begins participation
on the date of employment. Employees are required to contribute a minimoum of 3% of their salary with an
optional maximum of up to 100% of their salary, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. The
City’s contribution is determined by the City Council each year, based on a minimum of 6%. of employee
salaries. The City’s contribution for each employee beging vesting after 5 vears and is fully vested after 10
years, [f an employee terminaies before becoming fully vested, the employer’s contzibutions that are
forfeited may be vsed to reduce the City’s eurrent-period contributions requirement.

Salary deforred under the plan is nol available to employees until termination, death, retitement or
unforeseedble emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property, and rights
purchased with these amounts and all income atiributable to {hese amounts remain the property of the City
without being restricted to the provisions of benefiis under the plan watil such amounts are paid or made
available to the employees, subjsct only to the claims of the City's general ereditors.
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The plan is administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, Neither the Oklahoma Municipal
Retirement Fund nor the City have a liability for losses under the plan, but have the duty of due care that
would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. :

The total contribution, net of forfeitures, for the year ended June 30, 2012, was $1,766,575 which
consisted of $828,955 (net of $193,571 in forfeitures) from the City and 3937,620 from employees,

The Hospital also participates in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Defined Contribution Plan, All
full-time employees of the Hospital are covered. The Tospital and employees contribute 6% and 3%,
respectively of eligible salaries info the plan. Contributions, net of forfeitures, were approximately
$1,650,000 from the Hospital and $817,000 from employees for the year ended December 31, 2011,
Forfeitures of $183,081 were applied to the Hospital’s required 6% coatribution,

Defined Benefit (Retiree) Plan In 19835, the City replaced a defined benefit plan with the current defined
contribution 401(a) plan. The assets of the defined benefit plan were apportioned to all eligible
participants in the plan as of June 30, 1985, except those assets atiributable to retired participants as of
June 30, 1985, which were used to fund the future retirement benefits of such retired participants. This
plan is closed to new entrants. The plan is administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund
{OMRF) as an agent multiple-employer plan, The balances and activity of this plan are reported in the
City's financial statements as a fiduciary fund, “Refiree-only defined benefit plan”. Although this plan is
considerably overfunded, the plan assets are not available for City use until such time ag the obligation to
pay the remaining retirees is exhansted.

Irvestments of this plan are stated at fair value based on published market prices and are impacted by
interest rate changes and market conditions as well as, for securifies of foreign governments, domestic
international and world trade policies. Debt and equity securities are reported at fair value using pricing
services or prices quoted by independent brokers at current exchange rates,

The adminisirator’s investment policy limits the concentration of each portfolio manager, No direct
invesiment in any one organization represenis 3% or more of the net assets held in trust for pension
benefits,

Contributions to the plan and actearial information included in the required supplementary information are
reported based on certain assumptions pertaining to interest rates, inflation rates, and employee
compensation and demographics.  Due to the changing nature of these assumptions, it is at least
reagsonably possible that ¢hanges in these assumptions may ocotr in the near term and, due o uncertainties
inherent in seiting assumptions, that the effect of such changes could be material to the financial
staterments.

As of January 1, 2012 the funded status of the defined benefit plan was as follows:

Actuaral accrued liabilitiy (AAL) 5 72,736
Actnarial value of plan assets . 5,505,421
(Overfunded) actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) ¥ (5.432,685)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 7569.0%
Anmnual covered payroll (active plan members) N/A

TA AL as a percentage of annual covered payroll N/A
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Oklaboma Police And Firefighter’s Pension And Retirement Systems

The City of Stillwater, as the employer, patticipates in two statewide cost-sharing multiple emplover

defined benefit plans on behalf of the police officers and firefighters. The Systems are funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary. The following is a summary of eligibility factors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions.

Obtaining separately {ssued
financial statements

Autherity establishing contribution
obligations and benefits

Bligibility to participate

Etnployee’s required coniribution
rate (percent of covered payroll)

City's required contribution rate
(percent of covered payroll)

State obligation

Periods required to vest

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution (full-time}

Deferred retivement option

Provisions for:
Cost of living adjustments
{normal retirement)

(Oklahoma Police
Pension and
Retirement System

Police Pension and Retirement
£001 N.W. 63" St. Suite 305
Oklahoma City Ok 73116-7335

State Statute

All full-time officers, employed by
a participating municipality, not
less than 21 years of age or more
than 45 vears of age when hired

8%
13%

State appropriation to find the
unfunded actuarial acerued liability

10 years

20 vears credited service, 2.5% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered;
if vested at or afler age 50 or after
10 but before 20 years of credited
service with reduced benefiis

Yes, 20 vears credited service with
additional option to participate in
deferred compensation plan
{Louisiana Plan}

Yes
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Oklahoma Firefighter’s
Pension and
Retirement System

Firefighters Pension & Retirement
4545 N, Lincoln Blvd. Suite 265
Oklahoma City, Ok, 73105-3414

State Statute

Al full-time or voluntary
firefighters of a participants
municipality hired before age 45

8%
13%

State appropriation to fund the
unfunded actuarial accrued
lability

10 years

20 vears credited service, 2.5% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 vears considered;
if vested at or afler age 50 or after
1G but before 20 years of credited
service with reduced benefits

Yeg., 20 years credited service with
coniinued service for a maximum.
of 30 years

Yes



Oklahoma Police Qklahoma Firefighter's

Pension and Pension and
Retirement System Retirement Svstem
Death (duty, non-duty, post
retirement) Yes Yes
Disability (duty, non-duty) Yes Yes
Cost of living allowances Yes Yes
Retirement System
Trend Information:
Coniributions required by State statute:
Oklahoma Police and Peasion Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retivement System Retirement System
City’s Required Percentage City’s Required Percentape
Fiscal Year Contribution Contributed Coniribution Contributed
2008 $521,301 100% $540,976 100%
2009 556,387 100% 542,879 100%
2010 - 574277 100% 583,034 100%
2011 569,206 100% 559,821 o 100%
2012 612,606 100% 571,908 100%

Trend information, showing the progress of the Systems in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due, is presented in the regpective separate annual financial reports of the Police and Firefighter
Pension Systems.

The total amount contributed to the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System and the Oklzhoma
Firefightet’s Pension and Retirement System by the State of Oklahoma on behalf of the City was
approximatety $523,869 and $1,145,856, respectively.

Related Patty Investiments

As of June 30, 2012 the Systems held no related-party investments of the City or of its
related entities,
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(5) RISK MANAGEMENT

As of June 30, 2012, claims outstanding against the City and its public authorities were $2,343,687 and is
accrued under the heading “Accrued Liabilities” in the accompanying financial statements. Liabilities
were accrued for tort claims, general liability claims and employee health insurance claims. The City is
self-insured for group medical, geaeral liability, workers compensation, unemployment, and properiy
damage. The City has a reinsurance policy which limits the City’s liability for major medical to $110,000
per individual. The City purchases conventional insurance for excess losses for general Hability and
property damage. Settlernent amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the
three prior years. The claims liability for health claims incurred but not reported is estimated by
management using a five-month claims lag analysis. The claims liability for workers compensation claims
and judgmenis is estimated using information provided by a third party administrator based on their
opinion of probable cutcome of litigation, The balance of the claim liability is expected to be paid within
the next year and is included in accrued liabilities on the statement of net assets. Al c¢laims are paid from
the consolidated cash account, funded by the General Fund. Changes in the balances of claims labilities
during fiscal years 2011-2012 and 2010-2011 were as follows:

Current Year

Beginning Claims and Ending
Liabitity Changes in Claim Lisbility
Balance Estimates Payments Balance

2011-2012 $ 1,934,084 $ 7,345,55] 3 6,935,948 $ 2,343,687
2010-2011 2,150,375 4,846,887 5,063,178 1,934,084

The Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss related to torls: theft of, damage to, and destruction of
asgets; businesy interroption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters;
employee disability end employee health, dental, and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters other than those related to employee health care benefits
and workers compensation claims. Setiled claims have not exceeded any commercial insurance coverage
in any three preceding years.

The Hospital partially self-insures the cost of employee health care benefits as it purchases anmual stop-
loss insurance coverage for specific claims in excess of $100,000 mp to $1,000,000. The Hospital
purchases commercial stop-loss insurance coverage for total claims in the aggregate amount of $100,000
up to $1,000,000. A provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims and workers'

- compernsation claims, including other claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported. The

accruals are estimated based on consideration of prior claims experience, recently settled claims,
frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. It is reasonably possible that the estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term.

Activity in the Hospital’s acerved employee health and workers’ compensation claims liability during
2011 and 2010 is sumunarized as follows '

Current Year
Beginning Claims and Ending
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
Balance Estimates Payments Balance
2011 $ 1,032,015 3 4,607,565 $ 4,746,903 b 892,681
2010 1,230,000 3,904,525 4,122,510 1,032,015
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{6) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, LITIGATION AND COMMITTMENTS

Under the terins of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required, and certain costs and revenues
may be questioned as to how they have been reported fo the grantor agency. Such audils could lead 1o
reimbursement to the grantor agency. The City’s management believes disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial to the accompanying basic financial statements.

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of management, some of these
may result in monetary judgments against the City, The claims result from sewer backup, police activiiies,
employment disputes, and other claims seeking declaratory/injunctive relief. Although the outcome of
these claims and lawsuits is not presently determinable, the amount of judgments could range from under
$25,000 to in excess of $100,000, The City has not recorded any accrual for these claims,

The City was involved in a taxpayer lawsuil, Dedrickson vs. City, et al, Case No. CJ-2008-97, District
Court of Payne County, The suit alleged the Stillwater Utilities Authority unlawfully diverted sarmarked
tax revennes info the Ciy’s general fund, The Plaintiffs songht refum of $34 million to the SUA.
Following a bench {rial in November 2010, the district court entered judgment in favor of the City and the
Authority, The trial court’s judgment was affirmed by the Oklahoma Court of Civil Appeals on Augnst
31, 2012. The plaintiffs filed an appeal asking the Oklahoma Supreme Court to review the opiniosn of the
Court of Civil Appeals, In December, 2012 the appeal was denied by the Oklahoma Supreme Court.

In July 2006, SUA and Rural Water Corporation No 3 entered into a purehage agreement in which the
Authority agreed to consolidate the two water distribution systems. In September 2010, the Rural Water
Advisory Bourd, the Rural Water Corporation No.3 Board, and the Authority’s Trustees approved
amendment of the initial July 2006 purchase agreement. The amended agreement identifies specific
improvements and upgrades to be made to the system and provides a timeline for completion. All
improvements and upgrades are subject to funding availability.

The Hospital has commitments for noncallable operating leases for primary care oulpatient offices which
sxpire in various years through October 2019, These leases generally contain renewal options for-periods
ranging from five to ten years and require the Hospital to pay all executory costs (property taxes,
maintenance and insurance). Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2011, were approximately:

2012 b 626,000
2013 589,000
2014 636,000
2015 610,000
2016 613,000
20172019 762,000

$ 3,808,000

() POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description Tn addition to the pension benefils described in Note 4, the City sponsors and
administers & self-funded, single employer defined benefit plan providing post-retirement health care
bensfits to all employess who retire from the City en or after atiaining age 55 with at least 10 years of
service, Police and Fire personnel are eligible based on the retirernont requirements for their pension plans.
The election to participate must be made at the time of separation from service. At June 30,2012, eleven
retiree-related participants (retivees, and/or spouses, and/or families) were participating in the City health
care plan. There were three retirees who met the eligibility requirements at June 30 whe did not choose to
participate. The City requires a monthly premium based ot City-wide claim trends of the previous fiscal
year. The premium rate for retirees is-adjusted each July 1, Upon monthly payment of this premium, the
City covers all medical expenses just as for active employees on a pay-as-you-go basis. Coverage is

66



available until the first day of the month in which the retiree reaches his or her Medicare eligibility age
{cwrrently 63). If the sponse of a retiree is covered at the thme the retiree comes off of the plan atf age 65,
that spouse is COBRA-eligible until age 65 or for 36 months, whichever is less, During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, net expenditures of $233,064 were attributable to post-retirement bealth care, The
plan does not issue a stand-alone report.

Funding Policy The City funds healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis utilizing a third party
adminigtrator, Blue Cross Blue Shield of Oklahoma. Eligible employees are required to pay set premiums
for a portion of the cost, with the City subsidizing the remaining costs, Contribution requirements of
active employees are established and amended as needed by the City Council. Premium rates for retirees
and COBRA participants are set by City management upon recommendations provided by the third party
administrators and the City’s re-insurance agent. The required monthly contribution rates for plan
members for fiscal year 2012 range from $37 to $313 for active employees, $388 to $1,440 for retired
participants, and $395 to $1,469 for COBRA participants.

Annugl OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation The City’s annual other post employment benefits (OPEB)
cost in the first year of implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement
No, 45, dccounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other than
Pensions, is equal to the anmual required contribution {ARC). In subsequent years, the annual OPEB cost
will be equal to the ARC plus an adjustment if the ARC is not funded each year, The ARC represenis a
level of funding that, if paid on an engoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost of each yvear plus
any unfunded actaariat liabilities as amortized over thirty years,

The following table shiows the components of the City’s arnual OPEB cost for the year, the amouont
coniributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation to the retives health plan:

Annual required contribition $ 579,956
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 102,011
Adjustment to annual required contribution {201,994}
Annual OPEB cost 479,973
Employer contributions 54,659
Increase in net OPEB obligation 425,314
Beginning OPEB obligation 2,125,264
Bnding OPEB obligation $ 2,550,578

The City’s annual OPER cost, the percentage of annual GPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the curreat and prior years are as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annyal Net Employer Anpual OPEB Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Conlribution  Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2012 $ 479973 % 54,659 11.0% $ 2,550,578
6/30/2011 760,001 103,155 14.0% 2,125,264
6/30/2010 887,362 TT985 9.0% 1,468,419
6/30/2009 724,310 65,268 9.0% 659,042
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Funding Status and Funding Progress The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized using a closed
period level dollar amortization over 30 years, beginning July 1, 2008. As of July 1, 2011, the funded
status of the retires health plan was as follows;

Actuarial acerued labilitly (AAL) i 4,581,662
Actuarial value of plan assots -
Un funded actuarial acerued liability (UAAL) $ 4,581,662
Funded ratlo (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.00%
Annual covered payrall (active plan members) $ 23,850,000
UAAL as a perceniage of annual coverd payroll 19.2%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates -of the
value of reporied amounts and assumpiions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future, Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends,
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are-compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

In the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2011, the projected unit credit (PUCY) actuarial cost method was
used to measure aceruing costs. Under the principals of the PUC method, the actuarial present value of the
projected benefits of each individual included in the valuation is allocated pro-rata to each year of service
between entry ape and assumed exit. The actuarial valuation utilized several siguificant assumptions
affecting the valuation results including the medical claims costs assumptions, the medical irend
assumptions, and the discount rate. The vesuliing antual required contribution was based on a 4.8%
discount rate and a medical trend rate beginuing at 5.75% in 2011 and grading to 5% in 2013,
Additionally, it was assumed that 50% of future retired participants would opt for tetiree health care
coverage. It was also assumed that 50% of future retirees who opt for health care coverage would cover a
spouse at retirement.

(8) REVENUES PLEDGED

SUA has pledged future sales tax revenues to repay a $6,010,000 note issued in December 2007 and a
$6,075,000 note issued in September 2010 to finance transportation improvement projects identified in the
2606 Transportation Sales Tax Ordinance. The notes are payable solely from sales tax revenus equal to
one half of the one-half cent transporiation sgles {ax collected by the City and transferred to SUA by way
of the Sales Tax Agreement. Sales taxes are projected to produce 100 percent of the debt service
requirements over the life of the notes. Total principal and interest remaining on the 2007 aote is
£3,836,016, payable semiaanually commencing December 2008 and concluding December 2016, Total
principal and interest remaining on the 2010 note is $4,826,562 payable semiznnually commencing
December 2010 and concluding December 2016, For the current year, iotal sales tax revenues were
81,712,285,

SUA has pledged future sales kax revenues and foture wtility revenues, net of operating and maintenance
expenses, (o repay debt obligaiions. Proceeds from the debt issuss financed the refunding of prior debt
obligations of SUA and the Stillwater Public Golf Authority and refinanced outstanding balances of notes
fo the OWRB. The debt obligations are payable from the one cent sales tax revenue dedicated to SUA by
City Ordinance No. 1835 and from net tevenues derived from the existence and operation of the utility
system to the extent sales {ax revenue fails to cover the debt obligations. Pledged revennes are projecied
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to produce 125 percent of the debt service requirements over the life of the debt. For the current year,
sales tax revenues were $6,849,141 and net revenues were $19,948,685.

Ad valorem revenue can only be collected to pay principal and interest on general obligation bonds or
court assessed judgments. Levying of an ad valorem tax requires a vote of the citizens. The City had
pledged future ad valorem taxes to repay the $8,500,000 2000 General Obligation bonds and the
$6,470,000 2001 Genera] Obligation bonds used to provide financing for the construction and remodel of
the City Hall/Police building, These bonds were refunded during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, The
refunding bonds of $8,350,000 ate due in payments comtencing June, 2011 through June, 2021, The
total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the tife of these bonds is $8,069,000. Ad valorem

© taxes received in the current year were $1,360,081. Debt service payments of $1,130,000 in the eurrent

fiscal year were 83% of the total ad valoremn tuxes received.

The following is a summary of the debt issues requiring a pledge of revenues:

Remaining Current Year

Issue Issue Maturity  Principal Principal

Debt Issue Amount Date Date and Interest  and Interest
2005 Refunding Series Bonds $ 12,965,000 May 2005 Qct2012 § 1,624,625 § 3,349,000
2007 Revenue Bonds 6,010,000 Dec 2007 Dec¢ 2016 3,836,016 847,360
2010 Revenue Bonds 6,075,000 Sept2010 Deg 2016 4,826,562 1,050,656
2002 OWREB SRF Note 3,413,483 Feb 2002 Sept 2021 1,662,539 175,568
2002 OWRB SRF Note 4,876,086 Dec2002 Sept2022 2,631,603 257,749
2005 OWREB Fixed Rate Note 7,620,000 Jup 2005 Mar 2025 6,710,995 516,230
2009 OWRE DWSRF Note 11,645,000 Nov 2009 Sept 2032 9,504,074 187,283
2009 OWRB CWSRF Note 1,875,000 Nov 2009 Sept 2030 1,345,765 107,330
2010 Refunding General Obligation Bonds 8,390,000 June 2011 June 2021 8,069,000 1,091,600

(9) COMPONENT UNIT BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND ASSOCIATED GOODWILL

On December 21, 2009, the Hospital acquired 100% of the assets of Stillwater Surgery Center, L.L.C,, an
outpatient ambulatory surgery center providing surgery services to patients of the surrounding geographic
area. The results of the surgery center’s operations have been included in the financial statements of the
Hospital since that date.

The excess of the purchase price aver the fair value of the assets and liabilities is attributable to goodwill.
Goodwill will be amortized on the straighi-line basis over 15 vears. Amortization expense it estimated o
be aporoximately $388,000 each year through 2024,

(10) COMPONENT UNIT INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Hospital’s investments in joint ventures relate to a 9% ownership in Heartland Healthcare Reciprocal
Risk Retention Group which is accounted for using the equity method of accounting; a 62% ownership in
Stillwater Medical Center Tmaging, 1LC which is accounted for using the equity method (as the Authority
only controlg 50% of the entity); a 50% ownership in Women Fisst, LLC which is accowted for using the
equity method; and a 9% ownership in Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater, LLC which is accounted for
using the cost method,

Heartland Healthcare Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (Heartland) provides insurance coverage. The
Hospilal paid approzimately $181,700 to purchase its professional liability {medical malpractics) and
general liability insurance from Heartland during the year ended December 31, 2011, The Hospital's
investment in Hemtland was $739,949 at December 31, 2011,
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Stillwater Medical Imaging, LLC (SMI) owns and operates MR, CT and other imaging equipment. The
Hospital purchases finaging services for its patients from the joint venture, Included in accounts
receivable of the Hospital is approximately $357,000 at December 31, 2011 due to the joint venture,
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Hospital earned approximately $941,000 in fees from
billing and coflection services related to SMI. The Hospital’s investment in SM{ was $763,201 at
December 31, 2011.

The Hospital purchases digital mammography and bone density services for its patients from Women

-First, LLC, Approximately $54,000 is included in accounts payable of the Hospital at December 31, 2011

due to the joint venture. During the year ended December 31, 2011, Women First reimbursed the Hospital
approximately $366,000 for expenses the Hospital incurred to manage its operations. The Hospital’s
investment in Women First was $102,425 at December 31, 2011,

Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater, LLC provides dialysis services to residenis of Stillwater and the
surrounding area. The Hospital did not have any transactions with Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater,
LLC during the year ended December 31, 2011, The Hospital's investment in Fresenins was $245,395 at
December 31, 2011.

Complete financial statements of these joint venture entities may be obtained by contacting the Hospital’s
management.

(11) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

An SUA debt obligation with the United States Army Corp of Engineers {(ITSACE) for water siorage space
at Kaw Leke and the related intangible asset were not reported in previously issued financial statements.
The annual debt retirement was previously reporied as an operations and maintenance expense which
necessitated an Increase to beginhing net assets of the Stillwater Utilitles Authority in the amount of
$534,678 as of July 1, 2011, There was no effect on current year revenue or expenditures as a result of
this adjustment. The intangible asset is reported at $1,530,403.

SPWA land was pactially erroneously reported as a City asset and was partially not reported In previously
issued financial statements. Land of $322,500 was emroneously reported as a City asset while $123,000
wag not reported. This necessitated an increase to the beginning net assets of the Stillwater Public Works
Authority in the amount of $445,500 as of July 1, 2011 and an increase in the governmental activities
beginning net assets balance as of July 1, 2011 in the amount of $123,000.

(12) RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The following aceounting standards have been recently issued and will be adopted as applicable by the
Authority. Unloss othierwise noted below, management has not yot determined the impact of these
Statements on the City’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Fmaneial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements” —
This Statement is to improve financidl reporting by addressing issues related to service concession
arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. As used in this
Statement, an SCA {s an arrangement between a transferor (a government) and an operator {(governmentat
or nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an operator the right and related
obligation to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public assel (a “facility™) in
exchange for significant consideration and {2) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third
parties. This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013,

GASB Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Staternents
No. 14 and No. 347 — This Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial
reporting entity, The requirements of Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and the related
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financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments” were amended to betier meet user needs and
to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements, This Statement
will become effective for the City in the fiseal year ending June 30, 2013,

GASB Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financisl Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements” — This Statement is to incorporate into the
GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which do not confliet with or
contradict GASB pronouncements, This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement No, 63, “Financial Reperifug of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Positien” — This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concept Statement No. 4, “Elements of Financial
Statements”, introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net assets by the government that
is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government that is
applicable to a ffure reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include
guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities.
This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013,

GASB Statement No. 64, “Derivative Instrumenis: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
provisions-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53" —~ The objective of this Statement is to clarify
whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap
counterparty’s credit support provider. This Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective
hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. This Statement
became effective for the City in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and did not have & material impact on
the City’s financial stateinents.

GASB Statement No. 65, “Ttems Previously Reported as Assets and Lisbilitles” — This Statement
establighes accounting and financial réporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred mflows of resources, cerfain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and
regognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and Habilitles, This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014,

GASB Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections-2012-and Amendment of GASB Staterments No. 10 and
No. 627 — The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by resolving
vonflicting guidance that resulted from ihe issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, “Tund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions™ and No. 62, “Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in. Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA

. Pronouncements,” This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year ended June 30,

2014,

GASB Statement No. 67, “Financia! Reporting for Pension Plans-an Amendment of GASB Statement No.
257 — The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local government
pension plans. This Statement will become effective for the City in the fiscal year snded June 30, 2014,

GASB Statement No. 68, “Accourtting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27" — The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement will become effective for the City
in the figeal year ended June 30, 2015.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OCKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) — GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES

Sales tax

Other taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Fees and rentals

Invesiment income

Licenses and pernits

Other miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
Pyublic Safety:
Police:
Personal services
Matferials and supplies
Contract services
Fire;
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Contract services
Total public salety

Recreation and cukture:
Parks and recreation;
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Contract services

Library:
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Contract services

Total recreation and culture

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual fom Final Budget
$ 24,104,000 8 23,104,000 § 25,285,215 $ 181,215
2,133,700 2,163,700 2,341,173 177473
66,600 908,204 145,303 (762,901)
972,100 972,100 691,407 {280,693}
644,300 644,300 708,506 64,206
1,372,850 1,387,850 1,478,384 90,534
62,600 62,600 50,011 (12,589
169,500 169,500 268,209 98,709
569,800 573,800 867,331 293,531
30,095,450 31,986,054 31,835,539 {150,515)
9,233,078 9,603,188 9,348,168 255,020
701,577 713,227 598,603 114,624
409,200 449,573 280,440 169,135
6,490,541 6,909,457 6,851,454 58,003
286,772 284,622 237,872 46,750
414,778 427,029 333,361 93,668
17,540,946 18,387,008 17,645,868 737,200
2,899,200 2,893,277 2,786,280 106,997
635,166 645,381 584,653 56,728
395,408 409,119 314,934 94,165
081,161 1,050,396 1,025,455 24,941
146,652 156,052 147,541 8,511
120,045 223,715 203,554 20,161
5,181,722 5,373,940 5,062,437 311,503
continued
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -- GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

{continued)
Original Final Varlance
Budget Budget Actual from Final Budget
General Government:
Personal services. 5,805,122 7,406,270 1,602,155 5,804,115
Materials and supplies 163,656 162,556 138,548 24,008
Contract services 2,832,813 3,343,050 1,589,842 1,753,208
Total General government 8,801,591 10,911,876 3,330,545 7,581,331
Financial administration:
Personal services 562,365 577,429 558,041 19,38%
Matertals and supplies 72,600 71,685 50,716 20,969
Contract services 23,578 24,493 (17,043) 41,538
Total financial administrtion 658,543 673,607 591,712 81,895
Public works admiristration:
Personal services 504,400 359,890 321,366 38,524
Materials and supplies 96,372 97,032 04,472 2,560
Contract services 56,900 132,540 62,768 65,772
Total public works administration 657,672 589,462 478,606 110,856
Street and sewers:
Personal services 1,604,220 1,701,675 1,621,709 79,966
Materials and supplies 641,553 666,050 511,286 154,764
Contract services 350,000 711,854 344,842 367,012
Total street and sewers 2,595,773 3,079,579 2,477,837 601,742
Human services:
Health:
Materfals and supplies 59,000 38,000 23,561 34,439
Contract services 44,869 44718 24,346 20,372
Community Development:
Personal services 1,213,862 1,279,608 1,242,200 37,408
Materisls and supplies 36,225 36,075 28,030 8,025
Contract services 50,869 85,369 62,202 23,167
Total human gervices 1,404,825 1,503,770 1,380,359 123411
continued
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OCKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -~ GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

{continued)
Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actaal  ° from Final Budget
Economic development:
Personal services 236,149 258,400 232,943 25457
Materials and supplics 55,625 71,155 54,197 16,958
Contract services S08 847 580,875 240 756 749,119
Total econoniic devepopment 1,200,621 1,319,430 527,896 791,534
Capital Outlay:
Police - 404,000 138,244 143,607 (5,363)
Fire 327,147 - 225,155 86,020 138,129
Recreation and culture - 146,284 146,284 -
General Government - 70,000 24,174 45,326
Human Services 35,000 © 33,000 28,746 6,254
Economic development - 24,922 24,920 2
Street and sewers 855,951 1,276,395 172,694 1,103,701
1,622,098 1,916,600 626,451 1,289,545
Total expenditures 39,663,791 43,754,762 32,125,741 11,629,021
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditires (9,568,341) (11,768,708) (290,202) 11,478,306
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES(USES):

Transfers in 18,191,240 18,807,668 12,702,136 (6,103,532)
Transfers out (13,724,219) (14,772,408) (10,567,682) 4,304,726
Total other financing sources {uses) 4,467,021 4,033,260 2,134,454 {1,900,806)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses (5,101,320 (7,733,448) 1,844,252 9,577,700
FUND BALANCES, beginning 9,466,622 9,466,622 9,466,622 -
FUND BALANCES, ending § 4,365,302 $ L733,174 0 11,310,874 5 9,577,700
Reconciliation o GAAP

Changes in receivables , 538,056

Fund balanices on the basis of GAAP $ 11,848,930
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2012

BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

Buggpet Law

The City operates under the Oklshoma Musicipal Budget Act of 1979 {the “Budget Act”). The
budget, as adopted by the City Counctl, ia filed with the State of Oldahoma Office of the Auditor
and Inspecior. Budget amendments or supplements made during the year are recommendad by
the City Manager and must be approved by the City Council. An amended budget is filed befors
year-end with the agency mentioned above, Current year amendments are not material in relation
to the original appropriated amounts, The budget and actual comparisons presented in the
financlal statements include the legally amended budgets for the respective funds.

The City uses the following procedures to establish the budgetary data reflected in the
accompanying general purpose financial statements:

Prior to June 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year comumencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted at regular council meetings to obtain taxpayer comments. Public
hearings are held no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of the budget yoar.

Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a motion by the City Couneil.

The Budget Act speciftes that the govemirig body may grant authorization to the City Manager to
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revision that
alters the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council,

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
General Fund, special revenue funds, Debt Service Fund and the capital projects funds, Budgets
are legally adopted for General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital
Projects Fund, Internal Service Funds and Enterprise Funds,

Budgets as adopted by the City Council are prepared on a cash basis except for acerued expenses
(other than vacation and sick pay) which are treated as expenditures.

Budgetary control is maintained by department and by the following category of expenditures:
personnel services, materials and supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay and debt
service. Bxpenditures and encumbrances may not legally exceed appropriations at the deparfment
level. All transfers of appropriations between funds and supplemental appropriations require City
Councit approval, The City Manager may transfer appropriations between olyject categories
within & fund with City Council approval. Supplemental appropriations must also be filed with
the Offtee of State Auditor and Inspector,

All encumbered appropriations lapée- at year end and are rebudgeted in the following budget year
where appropriate, Unencumbered appropriations also lapse at year end.

The Cily prepared and adopted a legal annual budget for all funds.
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In accordance with Title 60 of the Oklahoma Slate Statutes, the Stiltwater Medical Center
Authority is required to prepare an annual budget and submit a copy to the City as beneficiary.
However, there are no further requirements such as form of budget, approval of the budget or
definition of a legal leve] of control.

Budgetary Compliance

For the year ended June 30, 2012 the City complied, in ali material respects, with the applicable
badget laws.

Reconciliation of budgetary basis and GAAP basis amounts

The City Council adopts annual operating budgets for the General Fund, special revenue
funds, Debt Service Fund and capital projects funds. The City budgets revenues on the basis
of cash receipts. For financial reporting purposes, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. For budgetary and financial purposes, expenditures are recognized as incurred.

The following summary reconciles revermes for the year from the budgetary basis to the
GAAP basis of reporting:

(eneral
Fund

Revenues on budget basis $ 31,835,539
Revennes received

during fiscal year and

measurable and available

at June 30, 2011 (4,738,009)
Revetmes received

during fiscal year and

measurable amd available

at June 30, 2012 5,280,565
Revenues on GAAP basis $ 32,378,095
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OXLAHOMA
Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2012

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued  Actuarial Unfunded Funded UAALas a
Actuarial Liability (AAL)Y Value of Assets AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date (a) (b) {a-b) (b/a) Payroll Covered Payroll
71/2011 3 4,581,662 § - $4,581,662 0.0% 23,850,000 19%
7/1/2010 6,237,065 - 6,237,065 0.0% 24,045,000 - 26%
7172009 6,792,492 - 6,792,492  0.0% 25,600,000 27%
71172008 5,535,944 ‘ - 5,535,944  0.0% 25,600,000 22%
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
Required Supplementary Information

Jfune 30, 2012
DEFINED BENEFIT (RETIREE) PLAN
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Accrued  Actuarial Unfinded  Funded UAALasa

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Value of Assets AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Percentage of

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) {b/a)  Payroll Covered Payroll
1/1/2012 3 72,736 § 5505421 § (5432,685) 7565.0% N/A N/A
1/1/2011 74,967 5460468  (5,385501) 7283.8% N/A N/A
1/1/2010 76,306 4,800,205  (4,723,899) 6290.7%  N/A NIA
171720009 102;921 4,070,506 (3,967,585) 3955.0% N/A N/A
1/1/2008 {34,253 5,593,501 (5,459,33%) 4166.5% N/A N/A
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN} CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) - TRANSPORTATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3§, 2012

Original Final Variance
Budgst Budget Actual from Finad Budget
REVENUES
Investment income ' $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 34747 § 19,747
Miscellancous e - - -
Total revenues . 15,000 15,000 34,747 19,747
EXPENDITURES
Street and sewers:
Personal services 215,913 215913 182,430 33483
Materials and supplies 44,800 44,800 9,836 34,964
Coniract serviges. 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000
Total strest and sewers 262,713 262,713 192,266 70,447
Capital outlay
Street and sewers 11,167,094 13,660,751 6,180,294 7,480,457
Total expenditurss ' 11,429,807 13,923,464 6,372,560 7,550,904
Excess (defiviency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (11,414,807) {13,908,464} (6,337,813} 7,570,651
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES(USES):
Transfers in 3,237,143 3,380,000 8,108,210 4,728,210
Transfers out (1,667,633) (1,667,633} (1,726,279) {58,646)
Total other financing sources (uges) 1,569,510 1,712,367 6,381,931 4,669,564
Exceas (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under)
“expenditures and other uses {9,845,297) (12,196,097) 44,118 12,240,215
FUND BALANCES, beginning 0,898,068 9,898,068 9,898,063 -
FUND BALANCES, ending $ 52,771 $ 0 (2,298,029) $ 5,942,186 § 12240215
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLCCK GRANT - to account for funds used for the
improvements in low-income portions of the community, Funding is provided by the Community
Development Block Grant Small Cities Set Aside program and local matching funds.

DEBT SERVICE - to account for the accumulation of ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for the
payment of general long-term principal, interest and related costs.

POLICEMUNICIPAL BUILDING BONDS - to account for the construction and purchase of
furnishing for a new police building and renovation of the municipal building financed through
general obligation bonds issue.




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLATOMA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
Special Debt Capital
Revenue Fand Service Projects Fund Total
Community Nonmajor
Development Sinking Police/Municipal Governmental
Block Grant Fund Buiiding_ Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b - 312,261 $ 579,932 3 892,193
Due from other governments 107,223 28,297 - 135,520
Accounts receiveble - - 583 583
Total assets 3 107,223 340,558 $ 580,515 $ 1,028,266
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES .

3 Accounts payable 3 153,820 - $ - 1,746 $ 155,566
Dueto other funds 10,928 - - 10,928
Deferred revenue - 20,398 - 20328

Total Liabilities 164,748 20,398 1,746 186,892
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Debt Service - 320,160 - 320,160
Capital Projects - - 578,769 578,769
Unassigned {57,525} - - (57,525}
Total fund balances (57,525) 320,160 578,768 841.404
Total lizbilities '
and fund balances $ 107,223 340,558 3 580,515

$ 1,028,296




e

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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Special Debt Capital
Reverie Fund Service Projects Fund Total
Commmity Nonmajor
Developmerit Sinking PoliceMumicipal Governmental
Block Gramt Fund Building Funds
REVENUES
Taxss § - 4 1,380,080 % - $ 1,360,080
Intersovernmental 212,775 - - 212,775
Other miscellaneous revenue 12,777 - - 12,777
Investment income - - 3,510 3,510
Total revenues 225,552 1,360,080 3,510 1,589,142
EXPENDITURES
Current operating
Human services 74,762 - - 74,762
Debt service
Principal retirements - 825,000 - 825,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 303,000 - 305,000
Capital outlay 309,683 - 93,264 403,647
Total expenditares 384,445 1,130,000 $3,964 1,608,409
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures {158,893) 230,086 (90,454) ( 19,267)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers ont - (294,329} - (294.329)
Total other financing sources (uses) - {294,329) - (294,329)
Net change io Fund Balances {158.,893) {64,24%) {60,454) (313,596)
FUND BALANCES, beginning 101,348 384,409 669,223 1,155,000
FIND BALANCES, ending b3 {57,525) $ 320,160 3 578,769 $ 841,404
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CTTY OF STILLWATER, ORLAHOMA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCAEDULE
WONMAJOR GOVERMNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SPECIAL REVENUE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BLOCK GRANT DERT SERVICE
Budgeted Amoumt 7 Varience From Budpsted Amounts Variance From _ Bodgeted Amounts Variance From
Original Final Actual Final Budiet Originl Final Actual Final Budgst Original Final Actnal Final Budget
REVENUES '
Taxes 5 - 5 - $ - $ - $ 1383275 $ 1383276  § 1,303,890 § (79.386) H - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Intergovernmentsl - 339,265 105,552 233,713) - - - - - - - -
Miscellanequs - - 12,777 eyl - - - - - - - -
Investment income - - - - - - - - - - 3,510 3518
Tital revenues . 339,263 118,329 (220,936) 1,383,276 1,383,276 1,303,800 {79,386} - - 3,510 3,510
EXPENDITURES
Qurrent operating
Recreation and eulmre - - - N - - - . - . _ .
Swreets and sewers - 117,690 311,930 5,760 - - - - - - . -
Fhunan secvices - 132,764 89,729 43,035 - - - - - - . -
Debt sexviee
Pringipal retirements - - - - 825,000 825,000 $25,000 - - - . -
Interest and fiscal charges N - - - 305,600 305,600 305,000 600 - - - -
Capita) outlay - - - - - - - - 644,524 568,075 93,964 574,111
Tatai expenditores - 450,454 401,659 48,795 1,130,600 1,130,600 1,130,000 600 644,524 668,075 93,964 574,111
Bxcess (deficiency) of '
revenues over {under) expenditures - (111,169} (283.330) {172,141) 252,676 252,676 173,890 {78,786) (544,534) (668,075} (90,454) 570,601
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Trensfers in - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers oy - - - - {272.675) (272,675) {166,402) 112,273 - - - -
Total erher financing sourses (uses) ' - » - B {272,675) (272,675) (160,402} 112,273 - - - -
et change in Fund Balances B {111,189) (283330} {172,141 (12,999 (79,599} 13,488 33,487 (644,524) (668,075) (90,454 570,601
FUND BALANCES, beginning 20,642 20,643 20,642 - 304,294 304,294 304,264 - 644,524 644,524 544,524 -
FUND BALANCES, ending 5 20,642 § (90,547) 3 @62.698) 8 (172,140) 5 284295 & 234295 & 317,782 3 33,487 5 . 3 {23,551) % 534,070 H 570,601




NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

AIRPORT - to account for the operation of the Stillwater Municipal Airport including capital
additions and improvements financed through federal and state grant proceeds and City
conitibutions.

STILLWATER INDUSTRIAIL REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - to account for expenditures
for industrial redevelopment. Financing is provided from federal grants, federal loans, city
contributions and citizen participation.




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS-NONMAIJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Stillwater
Industriai
Redevelopment
ASSETS Alrport Authority Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - 5 176,819 176.819
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 48% 137 646
Instalimerit loans receivable : . . 135,461 135,461
Lugsebold recelvatile - 20006 20,000
Tnventcries . 35,993 - 35,993
Tolal curvont assefs 36,482 132,437 348919
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Tenseholt recatvable - 185,000 185,000
Due from other governments 219,206 “ 219,206
Capital assets, non depreciable 3,130,913 - 3,130,913
Capital asseta, net of accumulnted depreciation 11,146,055 35,793 11,185,853
Total noncurrent assets : 14,496,179 224,793 14,720,972
Total assets 14,532,661 557,230 15,089,891
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LYABILITIES
Aucounsts payable 9,100 13,313 22,413
Acctued liabilities . 11,805 L2492 14,297
Cuzrent portion of cofpensated absences 1.326 658 1,984
e to otlier fnds 190,064 - 190,064
Cursent portion of advanses from ather fands - 20,000 20,006
Current portion of refimdable mrant ohligations - 23,514 23,914
“Total current liabilities 212,295 60,377 272,672
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Woneurrent portion of advances fiom other funds B 185.000 185,000
Nencureent partion of compensated absences 27,564 2,140 29,704
Noneurrent portion-of customer depesits payable 11,680 - 11,680
Tatal nencurrent liabilities 39,244 187.140 226384
Total Tabilitics 251,539 247,517 499,056
NET ASSETS
Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 14.276,973 39,793 14,316,766
Restricted donation - 2712 272
Unrestristed 4,149 267,208 271,357
Total net agsels - $ 14281122 13 308,713 3 14,503,835
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLATIOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENURES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Stillwater
Industeial
Redevelopment
Adrport Authority Fotal
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for servives ¥ 1341491 s - § 0 1341491
Other 296,340 23,328 319,668
Total operating revennes 1,637,831 23,328 1,661,159
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and maintenance 1,879,162 171,892 2,051,054
Depreciation 816,006 1,584 817,590
Tolal operating expenses 2,625,168 173,476 2,868,644
Cperating loss (1,057,357 {150,148) (1,207,435}
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Iavestment incoms VLYl 949 1,696
Intergovernmental revenue 1,555,886 - 1,555,886
Loss on disposal of asset 12,319y - (12,339)
Net nopoperating revenues (expetiges) 1,544,294 945 1,345,243
Income {loss) before .
capital confributions and transfors 486,957 (149,199} 337,758
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions 7,649 139,204 146,853
Transfers 237030 " 56,941 293,971
Net capital contributions and transfers 244,679 196,145 440,824
Change in et assets 731,636 46,946 718,582
NET ASSETS, beginning 13,549,486 262,767 13,812,253
NET ASSETS, ending 14,281,122 & 309,713 3 14,590,835
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS --NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Business development incentive loans issued
Collections of business development incentive loan principal
[inter activity-payments to other funds
Other receipts
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FRCM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions
Capital grants
Purchases of assels
Prineipal received on capital debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital activities

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
inlerest
Met cash provided by investing activitles

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by {used by)
operating activities
Qperating loss
Adjustments to reconeile operaling loss to net cash provided by
{used for) operating activities ’
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net
Inventories
Accounts and other payables
Acorued expenses

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activitiey

Noen-cash activities:
Capital Asset transferred
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Stillwater
Industrial
Redevelopment
Alrport Authority Total

§ 1,341,479 % - 3 1,341,479
{1,457,599) (101,839) (1,559,438)
(315,763) (62,624 {378,387y
- (140,000) {140,600}

- 3,576 8,576

187,818 (25,848) 161,968

296,340 23,328 319,668
52,275 (298,408) (246,133)

237,030 56,941 293,971

237,030 56,941 293,971

7,649 139,204 146,853

1,407,322 - 1,407,322
(1,771,047) (33,425 (1,304,472)

- 34,442 34,442

(356,076) 140,221 (215,855)

747 1,129 1,876

747 1,129 1.576

(66,624} (1001 1.7) {146,141}

66,024 276,936 342,960

§ - § 176,819 $ 176,819
$ (1,057,337} $  (150,148) $ (1,207485)

816,006 1,584 817,590

(12) {131,424) (131,436)

107,646 - 107,646

182,517 (19,524) 162,993

3,455 1,104 4,559

5 52,275 3 (298,408} 5 (246,133)

$ 12,339 $ - $ 12,339
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, 7 June 30,
2011 Additions Reductions 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,470 $ 403,224 $ 160,312 285,382
Pooled investments 126,661 - 73,982 52,679
Other investments 260,000 70,529 70,000 260,529
Assessment receivable 805 162,023 162,023 803
Total assets $ 429936 $§ 635776 $ 466,317 599,395
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 3,237 $ 2,065 $ 5,005 207
Amounts held in escrow 426,699 638,716 466,317 599,098
Total liabilities § 429,936 $ 640,781 § 471,322 569,395
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Statistical

This section of the City’s CAFR presents detailed information as a comtext for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. This
information has not been audited by the independent auditor.

Financial Trends — These schedules contain frend information to help the reader
understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being changed over
time. See pages 87 - 92.

Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader
assess the City’s significant local revenue sources, the sales tax and the property
tax, as well as other revenue sources. See pages 93-99,

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and City’s ability
to issue additional debt in the future, See pages 100-104

Operating Information — These schedules contain serviece and infrastructure data
to help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial report
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. See pages
105-108 '

Economic and Demographic Information — These schedules offer economic
and demographic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over
time and with other government. See pages 109-110,

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
City’s comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Governmentil activities
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Reswicted for capital projects
Restricied for debt service
Restricted for street improvements
Restricted for specific operating activities
Unrestricted

Total goverrmnentst activities net assets

Business-type activilies
Tnvested in capital assets, net of relatad debt
Restricted for capiial projects
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for specitic operating activities
Uhrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government
Invested Tn capitel assets, net of related debt
Reatricied for capitat projects
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for street improvements
Restricted for specific operating activities
EInrestricted

Totat primary government et assets

CITY OF STEIWATER, OKLAHOMA

NET ASSETS BY COMPOMNENT
LAST TEN FisCAL YEARS
As of June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2016 i 2612
$ 72220782 0§ 70,985,360 $ 71724483 % 70,865,043 § 75,874,338 § 78,005,755 § 82,075,030 3 87,623,606 I 84,309,362 § 85208395
353,864 311,827 227,641 182,859 136,719 99,218 14,093 703,907 6,633,915 378,769
613,449 761,583 686,375 168,595 96,746 129,488 279,956 245,659 384,409 320,160
- - 7,158,848 9,582,135 10,044,476 9,609,597 6,199,305 3,382,031 5,964,652 6,003,859
- - 536,641 615,844 538,210 630,646 745814 876,105 1,022,401 1,228 413
11,813,537 12,374,242 3,327,289 5,620,2C1 4,075,193 1,575,602 787,697 3,337,015 (1,655,568} 5,857 858

§ 857201662 § 84,437,013

$ §3,671.260

S 87035081 § 90,805,882

$ 90,050,304 § 90,103,935

T 96,368,323 & 06749211

§ 99,197,496

$ 65,423,858 § 70,312,395

5 74,539974

§ 77,374975 5 80,898,110

$ 54,155,142 $ 85,903,110

$ 92324322 § 92,794,475

3 95,439,173

- . . - - 54,756 54,756 1,8%7,220 5,817,007 T4L699
2,966,493 2,775,899 1,376,664 1,382,124 1,912,627 2,208,517 2,248,810 2,440,346 2,609,803 1,366,601

- . - - - - - 2,712 2,712 2712
25627707 25425194 26480143 24471836 21526047 22594008  22271,608 23198816 28632774 39,359461
$ 03,318,058 § 58213488 8 102405781 5 103428035 5 104337484 § 109012471 § 113,478,374 8 119793416 $ 125,056.771 5 136,909,276
$ 137,644,640 § 141,501,794 § 146264450 §148240,018 $ 156,772,648 § 162,160,897 §$ 170,982,140 § 179,947,928 $ 177,193,837 § 180,647,568
553,804 311,837 227,541 182,859 156,719 153,972 68,549 2,531,127 11,630,922 1,320,468
2,879,942 3,037,484 2073039 1,751,123 2,009,373 2,338,005 2,528,806 2,686,005 2,994,212 1,686,761

- - 7,158,849 9,582,135 10,044,476 2,609,597 6,199,305 3,382,031 5,964,692 6,002,859

- - 536,641 615,844 558210 630,646 745,814 876,105 1,025,113 1,231,197
37441244 37799356 29816412 30092037 25602140 24160611 23059395 26735831 26577206 45216989

$178,519,720  § 182,650,501

$ 186,077,041

% 190,465,016 S 193,143,566

199,062,728 § 205,554,509

$216,159,007 225,805,982

§ 236,106,772

Note: The City began o report acerua] {nforoeation when it implemented GASE Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, GKLAHOMA

63

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)
(paminusdj
Fiscal Year Eoded June 30,
2603 2004 2905 2006 2007 2008 2009 201 2011 2082,
Business-lype autivites:
Charges for services:
Electris, wrater, Wastewaisr, and sanitation operations 39,021,354 41,085,887 43,595 811 48,197,848 51,315,037 53,517,022 53,076,534 36,340,873 61,196,054 65,532,650
Srittwater Public Golf Autharity 881,516 796,669 73,913 820,252 697,495 730,872 724,539 280,237 - -
Stllwater Industrial Redevelopment Autfiority 151 1,181 932 751 « - - - - -
Busineys area development - - - - - 2,712 19,480 2,766 15,671 3,328
Alrport operations 486,935 586,264 FET,IZT 1,156,881 1,150,365 1,556,281 116983 £ 180,913 1,429,150 1,637,831
Dpersting gromts snd contribufions 17,050 23138 155,892 106,640 - - - - - -
Capilal grants and contribations 2,194.428 1,615,051 3926570 1,276,045 2,183,284 2,155,469 3,288,583 7,884,246 2,507,495 3.407,19%
Tord b type activities program revenues 43,533 854 44,081,190 40,342 345 31,552,397 55348181 58915,336 58,269,787 65,709,037 65,151,376 70,603,008
Total primary government PrORTAM revemues $ 45001345 8 47430371 S 33235987 § 36,202250 & ELRI5,092 § 51581785 % 64,138,104 S 71991273 & 70238516 $ 75,674,485
Net (Expause}/Revente
Governmental zctivities 5 (25,236,304} 3 (25,849,580} § 37,619,632 § (27,585,738 3§ (29,032.718) § 33,150,003} § {32,886,172) §  (32,36L,189) § (32.408,691) & {35.325,185)
Business-type sctivities 3,852,731 6,423,545 §.364,106 1836246 5046554 7.343,001 2551845 17,774,596 13,656,816 14,803,632
Towl primary govermment net expemse 3 (19423,773) § {19,426.035} § (19253437) § (32,740.390} § (24,006,164) § (25807092) § 23934307 § {14586,503) § {18,751.875) § {20,416,553)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Taxes: .
Sales and use taxes $ 17443260 3 18,598,176 § 19,822,637 $ 2483470 § 22837240 § 23,860,004 $ 24,129,712 § 23410,504 3 24380442 § 25,787,840
Property taxes 2,223,535 2,130,193 1,979,773 1,368,867 1,315,487 1,343,353 991,643 1,377,028 1,448,266 1,343,480
Frapchige and public service taxes 1,249,009 1,323,018 1,380,775 1,437,986 1,330,435 1,502,845 2,047.096 1,595,344 1,548,118 1,344,506
E91L taxes 113,610 LI7,167 98,792 43,739 84,444 81,681 81,928 81,621 56,529 63,870
Hotelimote] taxes 277,307 294,615 33,727 268,826 405,552 439,953 437,781 494,145 560,749 615,957
Invesunent income 93,243 73,000 284,037 382,330 616,842 464,024 105,908 29,969 104,666 78,162
Miscelianeous 277,563 212,258 138,247 514,193 532,498 587,117 - - - -
Transfers-ttemat activity 5,952,099 3,178,317 2299435 4,738,359 3.678.621 4.115,538 5,147.735 11,634,966 4,671,805 8,217,034
Total governroental astivities 28,660,628 24,927,144 265,537,423 30,749,048 32,823,510 32,364,515 32941,804 38,623,577 32,789,579 37,650,470
Business-type activities:
Jovesinen? income 330,530 166,447 451,770 508,708 1,212,709 47,390 232,822 144,148 114,643 275937
AMiscellameous . 608,826 743,816 202,682 237068 329,107 599,887 428,018 31,263 163,765 356,312
Transfers-intemal acfivity (8.582,100) {2,178317) (2299435 (4,758,359 (3.675,621) {#,115,338) {3,147.735) {11,634.%65) {4,671.809) {8217.053)
Total business-iype activities (6,042,744} {1,268,054) {1.634,983} (3:612,585) 4,157,805} (2,668,261} (3,485,893) {11,458,55%5) {4,393.461) {7.550,805)
Total pricoary govemment E 22,617,883 § 23,659,000 § 24,705,440 $ 27336465 3 28685714 S 20726254 ¢ 28435900 § 37,164022 8 28,396,118 % 30,039,663
Change in Net Agsets
Govemmental activities 5 340,124 5 (222,436} ¥ 282210 5 3,163,312 % 3,770,800 8 {735,578) 8 55,63% % 6.262,588 8 330,888 3 2.325983
Business-fype achvities (210,013} 5,155481 6,720,213 1,723,663 908,748 4,674,140 4,463 550 6,315,041 8,253,333 7.317,827
Total primary government 3 5,194,111 § 4233035 & 5447,003_ 5 4386975 8 4679550 § 3919,162 ' § 4321382 3 13577428 § 6,644,243 § 9,643,112

Note: The City began to veport accrual informativn. when i implemented CASB Statemant 34 {n fiseal year 2003,
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General fund
Non-spendsble; inventories
Restrictad for public safety
Restricted for sales tax mansfy
Committed o public safety
Commiried to sconomie development
Assienad to self insurance
Assigned (0 recreation and ouiture
Unassigned

Total general fand

All pther Governmental Funds
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capitat improvemenis
Unassipned

Total all other governmenial finds

{1) GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmenial Fand Type Definftions, was implernented in FY2011. The objective af this Statement is to improve the usefulness, including understandability,

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
FUND BALAWNCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified acorual busis of accountng)

As of une 30, .

) 2002 2005 0 07 T 2609 ] A0 EITE)
144063 % 179,414 171,518 § 196965 § 178914 3 25927 § 370,012 § 332315 § 183,741 178,437
110,863 105,045 118,573 111,138 103,174 103,845 105,158 104,082 160,713 107,914

1,188,233 1,235,969 1,334 010 1,496,905 1,543,166 161,836 1,647,182 I,647,181 1,654,153 1,634,153
167,177 207,097 228513 236,216 230,006 259,093 323,533 374,648 522974 555,967
- 43.034 40,930 28,797 47,005 31,781 47,10 50,059 235673 386,097
951,031 335,704 §55,704 1,072,554 1,434,580 855,704 §55,704 506,958 828,670 280,841
328,444 163,246 168,065 99,291 76,870 105,920 BLLS04 125484 150,445 167,036
6.130,987 4,053,732 1,342,401 3,160,167 1,517,341 219,459 (125.077) 3,730,961 5,806,453 8,518.485
0,221,028 § 7,745.241 4252304 % 6402,032 3 4580272 3 3429565 3 345,127 3 6,986,689 § 5,462,122 11,348,930
613,449 § F61,585 696,575 § 168,99 & 96,746 3 129488 % 279,995 % 245659 3% 334,409 320,160
553,394 311,827 237,641 182,859 136,712 99216 14,003 705,507 6,633,915 6,582,628
3243618 3,773,881 7,579,168 10,620,862 11077487 10,436,932 6,961,761 4,369,761 101,368 {57,525}
4.410,958 % 6,847,293 §,903,212 § 10,972,720 % 11,330,892 % 10,66543 § 7,255,850 % 5319337 § 7,119,692 6,845263

of governtmental fimd balance informatien, This Statemnent provides more ¢learly defined categories 1o make the nature and extent of the copstraints placed on 2 government's fimd balance more transparenl.
Data is presenied prospectively begtnuing in FY201T. .
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Revermaes

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for service

Fines and forfeits

Feos and rentals

Investment income

Licenses and permits

Other miscellaneous revenues
Total revermes

Expenditures
Current:

Publiz safety
Recreation and culture
General government
Financial administration
Streefs and sewers
Operations
Economic development
Hurman services

Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest and fiscat charges
Capital outlay
Total grpenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sonrces (Uses)
Proceeds of refunding bonds and other debt
Fayment o refinded bond escrow agent
Froceeds from sale of assets

Transfors in

Transfers out

Transfer out to component umit

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fond balanees

Debt gerviés as a percentage of noncapital

expenditures

CITY CF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified scorual basis of accomting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2003 2004 2608 2006 2007 2008 2008 2019 2001 2012
21.057.007 § 22445024 & 23460061 § 24995004 §  25,893302 § 27326131 § 27682280 § 26963407 5 28024398 3 29371854
495,483 392,990 742,105 245,939 308,548 472,028 373,768 493,720 963,136 533,384
445,299 1,373,769 1,428,079 1.653,785 1,462,896 1,357,411 1,427,601 1,343,284 1,449277 850,145
756,362 845,093 889,850 877,163 207421 789,481 810,280 786,164 656,201 776,389
426,335 498,198 526,700 642,259 $02,179 816,051 932,655 1,220295 1,466,352 1438373
90,865 73,414 192,169 377479 669,562 458,761 103,453 26,323 104,175 77,854
28,583 113,460 182,293 272,355 303,354 246,636 242,593 207.401 187,563 268,209
1.346.061 381,880 397,285 686.876 1,092,042 1,328.187 1,428.570 1,392,714 726,410 380,825
24,713.075 26,023,768 27,818,542 29,700,862 31,285,314 32 744 686 33.601,309 32,436,308 33,577,512 33,997,033
11,212,713 12,238,250 12,919,030 13,663,801 15,147,760 16,682,553 15,987,850 16,547,892 16,420,643 17,649,898
3,725,646 3,775,171 4,050,919 4,256,008 4,781,101 5,015,086 5.061.382 5,386,147 5.462,498 £.062.437
1,548,115 1,723,360 2,156,539 2,172,095 2,624,051 2,586,340 3,603,225 3,027,262 2,837,873 3,330,545
523,378 488,920 525,900 §14,774 612,413 378,968 378450 703,529 600,203 591,712
1,826,022 1,879,794 1,889,400 2,025,858 2,375,675 2,621,506 2,658,212 2,663,639 2,380,470 2,670,103
73L566 807 442 902,206 982,005 741,181 583,597 £72,035 553,600 589,376 478,606
386,524 500,066 937,093 972,702 1.004,617 1,035,287 1,056,920 431.197 422 624 527.896
1,236,49% 1,191,431 1,527,309 1,365.664 1,647,385 1,946,693 1,791,442 1,402,018 1.436,49¢ 1,435,121
90,000 790,000 750,000 790,000 790,000 750,000 790,000 796,000 775,000 825,000
$08AG5 745,265 585,463 632,465 582,865 532,525 483,045 432205 385,408 305.000
5,617,633 2,876,591 5,175,092 2,864,516 §,402,132 6,113,834 8,578.055 9,264,917 3,397,358 7,210,392
28,407,503 27.031,260 31,558,965 30,238,978 36.718.580 38,885,880 41.460.575 41,057 426 34,707,552 40,106,710
{3,694,428) {1,007,522) (3,740,453 (539,116) (5.433,266) 6,141,203) (8,439.266) (8,821,118) (1.130,440) (6.109,677)
- - - - - - - 9,105,336 53,488 -
- - - - - - - (8,392,089) - -
- - - - - - - - $75.655
15,654,554 11,683,976 11,755,379 14,541,601 13,534,835 15.260,534 17,361,233 17,361,233 16,802,447 20,810,346
(8,672,435} (9.431,421) (9,455,944) {9,783,242) (9,165,164) (11,3354%4) (12,495,951} (12,495.991) (12,025,352) (12,588,290}
(260,786} (280,485) - - - - - - - -
6.712.313 1,972,070 2299435 4,758,359 4369671 3,925,040 4263242 5,578,489 5,406,238 8,222,056
3,017.885 8§ 964,548 3 (1,441,012} § 4219243 § (1,063.595) §  (2,216.163) § {3.584.024} § (3,242,620) 3 4275798 §  Z 11237
7.01% 6.36% 3.59% 5.20% 4.53% 4.04% 387% 3180% 3.71% 344%
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLATOMA

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAT. YEARS
(ucorual basis of accounting)

Franchise and Public Sales Tax as Percerzage of
Fiscal Year Sales & Use Taxes Property Taxes Service Taxes E811 Tgxcs Hotel/Motel Taxes  Total Texes Total Taxes
2003 17,058,712 2,087,520 1,519,948 113,610 277,307 21,057,097 21.01%
2004 18,598,176 2,130,193 1,322,018 117,167 264,015 22,461,569 82.80%
2005 10,822,637 1,979,773 1,380,775 98,792 332,727 23,614,704 83.94%
2006 21,824,709 1,368,897 1,437,986 93,739 368,826 25,094,157 86.97%
2007 22,857,240 1,315,487 1,330,835 84,444 406,552 25,994,558 87.93%
2008 23,860,004 1,343,353 1,502,845 81,681 439,953 27,227,836 §7.63%
2009 24,128712 091,643 2,047,096 §1,928 437,781 27,688,160 87.15%
2010 23,410,504 1,377,028 1,595,344 81,821 494,143 26,958,642 86.84%
2011 24.380,442 1,448,266 1,548,118 66,529 560,749 28,013,104 87.06%
2012 25,787,401 1,343,480 1,544 306 63,870 615,997 28355254 87.85%
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
ASSESSED VALUR AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{in thousands)

Taotal Ratio of Total
Public Service Homestead Net Total Total Direct  Estimated Assessed to

Fiscal Year Real Property Personal Property Property Tota] Valuation Exemption Va!u_ation Tax Rate  Actual Value _ Actual Value
2603 127,306 30,420 9,096 166,912 5,326 161,586 1370 1,464,140 11.04%
2004 138,265 31,256 10,610 18G,125 5,227 174,898 12.2¢ 1,580,044 15.07%
2005 147,533 30,842 10,936 189,353 5,096 184,257 10.76 1,660,961 11.09%
2006 157,236 32,721 12,360 202,317 5,001 197,226 T1.19 1,774,711 t1.11%
2007 173,283 35,512 11,516 220311 5,198 215,113 6.17 1,932,553 11.13%
2608 190,637 38,567 9911 239,113 5,300 233815 572 2,097 439 11.15%
2008 205,793 40243 8,976 235,012 3,307 249,705 575 2,236,947 11.16%
2010 220,793 40,426 0,324 270,543 5322 265,221 5.24 2,373,184 11.18%
2011 233,860 40031 9.692 283,583 5334 278,249 5.23 2,487,570 11.19%
20612 237,'2;28 28,578 9,444 275,250 5,199 270,051 495 2414474 11.18%

The assessed value of the taxable property as certified by the Payne County Assessor 10 be used for the 2012-20613 fiscal year is as follows:

2013

Public Service Homestead Other Net Total  Total Direct Total Estimated
Real Property Personal Property Property Tota] Valuation Exemption  Exemptions (2)  Valgation Teax Rate Aciual Value
3 742,749 § 22543 § 2953 § 2747245 § 5173 8§ 879 § 268,193 490 § 2,405,658

{1) Source: Payne County Assessor

{2) Prior to Fiscal Year 2013, "Other Exemptions” werg included in "Total Valuation" by the Payne County Assessor.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(rate per 81,000 of assessed vahue)

City of Stillwater Independent Scheol Meridian Technology

Fiscal Year Debt Service Fund District No. 16 Center Payns County Total
2003 13.70 64.34 15.00 16.60 109.04
2004 12.29 62.55 15.00 16.00 105.84
2005 10.76 62.96 15.00 16.00 104.72
2006 715 63.71 15.00 16.60 10190
2007 6.17 62.93 15.00 16.60 1860.10
2008 5.72 64.17 15.00 16.00 100.89
2009 5.75 62.09 15.00 16.00 98.84
2010 5.24 63.20 15.00 16.00 99.44
2011 35.23 64.82 15.60 16.60 101.05
2012 4.95 68.96 15.47 16.43 105.81

The direct and overlapping tax rates for FY 2012-2013 are as follows:

City of Stillwater Independent School Meridian Technology

Fiscal Year Debt Service Fund District No. 16 Center Payne County Total

2013 4,990 64.53 1547 16.43 101.33

{1} Sowrce: Payne County Assessor
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS (1}
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGQ

2G12

2063

Percentage of

2012 Assessed  Fotal Asgessed

Percentage of

2003 Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business
Links at Stillwater Aperiments/golf/fimess developrnent
ATET Mobihiey TLC Telephone utility
Wal-Mart Real Estate Discount supercenter
Lakeview Pointe Shopping Center
Armstrong World Tndustries, Ine. Maenufacturer of floor coverings
Oklahoma Natwral Gas Gas Utlliny
Nationzl Standard Co. Manufacturer of steef cord for radial tres
Southwestem Bell Telephone, LP Telephone wtility
Lowes Home Centter, Ine, Home Improvement store
Henry Wells, White Bam Banquetr Hatl/Golf
Brunswick Corporation Meanufacturer of stesn-drive beat motors
Quad Graphics Printer of magazines and advertising inserts
Chickasaw Telecom Services, Inc. Telephone utility

Stilbwater Designs & Audio, Inc.

{1) Source: Payne County Assessor

Manufecturer of mobile stereo equipment

Valuation Valvation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank
2647727 0.99% i
2,597,431 0.97% 2
2,487,633 0.93% 3 1,756,834 1.00% 7
2,393,520 0.89% 4
1,921,682 0.72% 5 6,189,505 3.54% 2
1,912,347 0.71% 6 1,232,608 0.70% 9
1,387,283 0.70% 7 2,043,611 11785 i}
1,598,629 0.60% 8 4,649,810 2.66% 3
1,451,187 0,54% 4 1,250,448 0.71% 8
1,375,197 0.51% 10
10,747,686 6.15% 1
3,533,517 2.02% 4
2075030 1.19% 5
1,076,995 0.629% 1
320,272,636 7.56% $34,559,444 19.76%




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{in thousands of dollars}

Collected on Prior

Collected within the Fiscal Yeat of the Levy Years' Levies (1)
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied for the year Amount Percentage of Levy Amount
2003 2,214 2,087 94% 3
2004 2,149 2,084 97% 8
2005 1,982 1,942 98% 15
2006 1,417 1,433 101% 18
2007 1,320 1,286 97% 19
2008 1,344 1,294 96% 64
2009 - 1,436 1,281 89% 151
2910 1,389 1,365 98% 21
2011 1,456 1,420 98% 40
2012 1,337 1,313 98% 47

(1) Collections of property taxes in Oklahorma are made at the County level. Information received from Payne County for
collected delinguent amounts does not include the original levy year,

Note: Total collections for July through Getober, 2012 are $8 thousand in current taxes and §5 thonsand in
delinguent taxes.




L6

General merchandgise stores

Eating and drinking places

Miscellaneous retasl

Building material, hardware, garden sapply
Food stores

Plectrde, gas, and sanitary services
Whelesale trade - durable goods

Apparel & accessory stores

Furnirure, home fiwnishings & equipment
Cormmunications

Automotive dealers & gasoline service
Education services

Business services

All pther owlets

Tatal

City general sales tax rare
Transferable te S1JA

Dedicated sales 1ax - transportation projects (23

Total tax rate

{1} Source: Oklahoma Tax Comraission

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY (I)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(in thousandy of dollars)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2019 2011 2012
5115431 $123,633 $128,097 $141,576 144281 $165,326 £168,961 $163,369 163,683 $191,170
57,980 60,824 68,314 79,730 84,125 88,711 93,953 95,055 100,179 108,943
46,128 40,969 52,776 53,655 59,973 63,590 60,811 58,989 61,044 65,576
34,245 41,593 48,395 52,357 51,699 58,193 56,626 48,296 44,602 47,178
49,365 48,339 42,733 38,049 35,924 34,492 35269 35,101 36,763 39,301
30,008 30,326 31,763 36,363 39,310 38,680 39,300 39,922 39,611 40,763
17,7 20511 23857 28,128 25,108 26,072 27,365 23,481 24 607 24,993
25,024 26,172 26,549 25,096 35,824 34,128 32,717 . 33376 35,328 39,194
18,406 10,749 21,611 24,266 24,478 26,142 26,924 23240 35,526 35,764
24,067 24,607 24,831 23,357 23,368 23,531 22,918 23,564 0,890 22 585
13,113 13,509 14,544 13,862 15227 14,103 13,847 13,765 15,732 16,053
8,822 12,582 10,580 16,947 12,76% 10,555 19,021 16,804 17,267 18,788
9984 o445 8,237 10,125 14,276 13,639 13,604 1,12 14,628 12,360
37426 39,306 40477 47200 14,811 51,539 53,009 49,662 54,324 57,182
$492,704 $571,583 $543,714 $534,801 T581,192 $648,701 666,355 633,748 T664,785 5700255
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 20% 2.0% 20% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1% L.0% 1.0% 1.6% 1.0% 1.0% 0%
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
359 35% 5% _ 35% T5% 5.5% 5.5% 3.5% 35% 3.5%

(2) Dedicated sales tax of 0,5% was effective October 1, 2081, This additiensl tax was 1o expire September 30, 2006 bat
was extended wntl September 30, 2016 by a wie of the citizens of Stillwaier on April 4, 2006.

Note; 'The State of Oklahoma retains 1% of the sales rax collected as an administrative fee.



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES (1)

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Fiscal Year City of Stillwater (2) State of Okiahoma Payne County (3)
2003 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2004 2.50% 4.50% (.50%
2005 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2006 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%/0.75%
2007 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2008 2.50% : 4.50% Q.75%
2009 2.56% 4.50% 0.75%
2010 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2011 2.50% 4.50% 6.75%
2012 2.50% 4.5G% 0.75%

(1) Sales tax i§ a major revenue scurge of the General Fund of the City of Stillwater, Sales tax
is collected by local merchants and remitted to the State of Oklahoma Tax Commission by the
13th of the month. following its receipt. The Tax Commission retutns the City's portion of the
sales tax to the city by the 15th of the following month. Beginning in 1979, an additional 1%
sales tax was levied by the city for use by the Stillwater Utilities Aunthority (SUA), i.e., a Public
Trust which operates the water, sewer and electric utilities of the City. The sales tax dedicated
for the SUA is received by the City's General Fund end is irnmediately transferred to SUA,

(2) The City portion of sales tax increased to 2.50% effective October 1, 2001, The additional .50% is

dedicated to fund transportation {street) projects. This additional tax will expire September 38, 2016.

(3) Stillwater is located in Payne County which initiated a .5% sales tax effective January 1, 1994,
The 3% sales tax expired and was replaced with a .375% sales tax effective January 1, 1999,
The Payne County sales tax was increased to .5% effective April 1, 2000.

The Payne County sales tax was increased to 0.75% effective April 1, 2006.

o8
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Residental

Tagestrialtnstiutionzl
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Ave monthly customers
Anuual Sales
Percentage of Total Anmual Sales

Ave monthily customers
Annual Bales
Percentage of Total Anrmal Sakes

Ave monthly customers
Armual Sales
Percentage of Total Annuad Sales

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

ELECTRIC UTILITY CUSTOMERS AND SALES BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2003 2004 2005

1,527 1,544 1,665

3,737,569 BTT638 4,115,871
13% 13% 14%

15,708 16,056 16,182

12,232,987 12,877,862 13,100,486
4% 4% 43%

2090 205 206

12,130,641 12,683,716 13,204,681
43% 43% 4314

2008
1,740
4,704,547
14%

16,760
15,647,337
45%

212
14,428,839
41%

20067
1,801
5,007,084
13%

£6,690
16,803,703
44%

220
16,256,536
43%

2008
1,873
5,239,488
4%

16,874
16,639,744
45%

225
15475209
41%

2009
1,920
5,481,954
5%

17,060
16,793,576
45%

237
15,135,507
46%

2019
1,956
5.914.254
15%

17,28C
17,710,456
46%

237
15,295,266
39%

20U
1958
5,772,953
14%

17,434
18,350,527
46%

250
16,101,435
40%

2012
1,983
5,807,202
13%

17,341
20,445,780
47%

264
17,054,738
39%
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Dbt Hinit
Less - Total net debt applicable to limit
Legal debt margirni

Total net debt applicable to the Himit
as a perceatage of debt Hnit

CITY OF STHLWATER, OKLAHOMA
[EGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{in thousands)
Legal Debt Margin Calentation for Fiseal Year 2012:
Net agsessed valuation $ 268,194
Allowsble debt of nonpublic utility bonds, Hnxted
by State Constitulion, article 10, Section 25,
to 1% of et assessed valnation 3 26,819
{e8s- Debt applicable to debt limit;
Municipal/police building general obligation bends (6,790}
Legal debt margin $ 20,029
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2068 2009 2010 2011 2012
$ 17,490 18,426 15,723 21,511 23,381 24,971 26,522 27,825 27,005 26,819
{13,780) {12,990} {12,200) i (11,410} {10,620} (2,830) {9,040} (8,350} {7.615} (6,790}
$ 3710 % 5436 § 7523 § 10,181 § 12,761 § 15,141 § 17482 % 19435 % 1939 % 20,029
TR.8% 70.5% 41.9% 53.0% 45.4% 394% 34.1% 36.2% 28.2% 253%
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DERT (1) (2)
AS OF JUNE 36, 2012

(in thousands of delfars)
Pereentage Applicable to
Debt Service Cash Net Bonds City of Stillwater Property  Estimated Share of

Governmental Unit: Bonds Outstanding Available (3) _ Outstanding Owners / Patrong Overlapping Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

Stillwater lndependent School District #16 (4) 3 32,585 % 5,715 & 26,870 8195% 3% 22,020
Debt repaid with sales taxes |

Payne County Facilities Authority (4) $ 14,175 § 2274 § . 11,901 68.49% 8,151
Subtotal - overlapping debt b 30,171
City of Stillwater direct debt 3 6790 % ' 312 % 6,478 100.00% 6,478
Total direct and overlapping debt 3 36,649

(1} Stiltwater School District and Payne County include all of the City of Stillwater and extend beyond the physical boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates
the portion of governmental debt that is borne by the property owners (via property taxes) and patrons (via sales tax) of the City of Stillwater.

{2} Computation assumptiens: For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of assessed property within the Ciiy of Stillwater in relation to the assessed
value of the school district (which extends beyond the city limits) was used. For the County debt repaid with sales taxes, the percentage of taxable sales for the
City of Stillwater in relation to the taxable sales for the entire county was used.

(3) Restricted in use by bond indentures and/or trustee agreements.

(4) Sources: Assessed value dafa, School and County amounts - Payne County Assessor's office
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
RATIOS OF QUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental
Activities Business-type Activities
Debt as
Personal Income  Percentage of
General Generat Obligation Total Primary {in thousands of  Personal Total Debt Per
Fiscal Year Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Bonds Notes Payable Capital Leases  Government dollars) Income Population Capita

2003 13,780,000 11,490,600 1,485,000 30,178,762 1,253,010 38,186,773 1,564,678 3.7% 40,735 1,428.42
2004 12,990,000 9,900,000 1,010,000 29_‘,253,384 1,348,741 54,503,125 1,623,651 3.4% 41,320 1,319.08
2003 12,200,000 21,250,000 305,060 14,702,699 1,018,933 49,676,652 1,759,533 2.8% 41,940 1,184.47
2006 11,410,000 18,943,000 “ 14,009,350 1,563,305 45,927 655 1,925,13¢% 24% 45,674 1,005.55
2067 10,620,000 16,320,000 - 13,307,167 1,663,711 41,910,878 2,102,451 2.0% 46,383 903.58
2008 9,830,000 13,590,000 - 18,606,464 1,030,812 43,057,276 2,306,093 1.9% 46,976 016.58
2009 9,640,000 10,735,600 - 17,390,784 938,198 38,103,982 2,314 503 1.6% 47,653 79961
2010 8,390,000 7,805,600 - 17,914,992 1.904495 36,014,487 2,402,414 1.5% 45,688 78827
2011 7,615,000 4,775,000 - 26,066,740 2,127,695 40,584,435 w2 wE 46,048 88135
2012 6,790,000 1,585,000 - 27,159,60% 2,347,169 37,881,778 *E *= o wE

*% Dyata not available at timme of publication
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RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUES

CITY OF STELWATER, OKL.AHOMA

~ AND PER CAPITA BONDED DEBT

General Obligation Bonds
Governmental Business -Type  Total Primary
Fiscal Year Activities Agctivities Govemnment

2003 13,786,00¢ 1,483,000 15,265,000
2004 12,996,006 1,010,000 14,600,000
2005 12,200,000 505,000 12,705,000
2006 11,410,000 - 11,410,000
2007 10,620,000 - 10,620,600
2008 2,830,000 - 9,830,600
2009 6,040,000 - 9,040,600
2010 8,390,000 - 8,390,060
2011 7,615,000 - 7,615,000
2012 6,790,000 - 6,790,600

*+* Data not avaitable at time of publication

Total Estimated Bonded Debt
Actual Value (in  per §1,000 of

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Total Bonded
Popudation  Debt Per Capita
40,735 374.74
41,320 338.82
41,940 302.93
45,674 249.81
46,383 228.96
46,976 209.26
47,653 189.70
45,688 183.64
46,048 16537

k2

FE

thousands}  assessed value
1,464,140 10.43
1,580,044 8.86
1,660,991 7.65
1,774,711 643
1,932,553 5.50
2,097,439 4.69
2,236,947 4.04
2,373,184 3.54
2,487,570 3.06
2414474 2.81
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE (1)
LAST TEN FISCAT YEARS
(dollars in thousands)

Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB} Notes and 2002 and 2005 Revenue Bonds

2007 and 2010 Revenue Notes (2)

Debt Service Debt Service
Utility Pledged
Operafing  Less: Operating Net Available Transportation
Fiscal Year Revenues Expenses Revenne Principal Interest Coverage Sales Tax Principal Tnterest Coverage
2003 36,506 26,855 9,651 916 819 5.56 - _ _ -
2004 38,117 27,292 10,825 2,515 823 3.24 - - - -
2005 43,566 37,498 6,098 2,305 709 2.02 . - - -
2006 48,198 42,396 5,802 2,625 693 175 - - - -
2007 31,315 45,907 5,408 2,730 619 1.61 - - - -
2008 52,517 44,519 7.998 2,855 535 2.36 938 495 326 1.13
2009 53,052 44 698 8,354 3,660 666 1.93 1,644 645 197 1.55
2010 56,341 44,535 11,806 2,930 440 3.50 1.576 1,276 269 1.02
2011 63,199 48,358 12,841 4,015 1,062 2.53 1,646 1,615 270 0.87
2012 65,533 52,026 13,507 2,654 507 4.27 1,712 1,675 223 0.90

{1) Detzils regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the nofes to the financial statements,

{2} The revenue note is payable solely from sales tax reverue equal to one half of the one-half cent transportation sales tax collected by the City.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FEINCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Funetion/Progzam 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Govemnmental activities:
Public safety 172.0 182.0 189.5 189.5 1880 1936 - 1930
Recremtion and colfure 97.0 08.0 161.0 91.6 162.0 93.8 87.8
General government 23.0 280 24,5 278 250 38.0 40.5
Financial administration 12.5 12.5 13.0 13.0 i35 150 15.0
Sérees and sewers ! 28.0 25.0 28.0 28.0 22.0 33.0 350
Engineering and public works admivdstration 210 220 255 225 280 17.0 143
Health and welfare 19.0 10.5 18.0 190 18.0 23.0 15.0
Business-type activities:
Electric, water and wastewater operations 127.0 132.0 136.0 137.8 130.0 1385 132.1
Sanitation operations 355 36.0 35.6 350 30.0 345 310
Stillwater Public Golf Authority (1) 21.0 25.0 22,0 210 19.5 z1.0 20.0
Afrport Operations 4.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 8.0
Tetal 566.5 585.0 397.5 590.1 5814 61175 589.9

{1) Stiftwater Public Golf Awthority was dissolved by ordinance in 2010. Beginning in 2011, goif employees are included with recreation and culture.
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56.3
36.5
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136.0
28.5
0.0
5.0

532.9
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Function/Program

Governmental activities:
Public safety
Police siations
Fire stations
Recreation mnd eyliure
Athletic Gelds
Temis Courts
Neighborhood/community parks
Lakeside Golf Course - gereage
Strect and sewers
Streets (miles)
Traffic signals
Business-type activities:
Electric, water, wastewater
Power plants
Substations
Miles of 69KV fine
‘Warer
Water Plant
Water storage towers (away from plant)
Wastewater
Wastewater Plant
Lift Stations

Sources: Various City deparfments
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
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" CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2005 2006 2007
1 1 1
4 4 4
21 24 24
14 14 14
22 24 24
160 160 160
205 297 230
51 53 61
1 1 1
8 % g
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Funcifon/Program

Governmental activities:
Public safety
Traffi¢ citations
Parking tickess
Police cells for service
Animals handied by Animal Welfare
Fire calls for service
Amibulance calts for service
Tecreation and culture
Acres mowed {1)
Program participants
Senior Center daily average attendance
Mimlti Arts participants (2)
Swimming pool admissions
{ akeside golf ecurse - rounds of goll
Mini bus rides {3}
Volatses in Yiboary
Totai circulation of library materials
General government
Sapported micre-computers by IT
Helpdeskfiroubie calls by IT
Ordinances drafted
Financial administration
Computer generated acoounis payable checks
Budget revisions/amendments processed
Requisitions reviewed
Municipal conrt cases
Street and sewers
EBlocks of striping (8)
Signs made
Crack scalant (blecks) (5)
Slurmy sealant (blocks)
Concrete replaceroent (cu. yds.}
Tngineering and public works administration
Developments reviewed
Permits fssued
Vehicles maintained
Fleet job orders completed
Health and welfare
Code enforcement ingpections
High grass and weed cases
Trees and shrubs plantad

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA,
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2003 20604 2005 2006 2007

3,769 6,252 5,621 3,700 5,073
14,161 10,645 12,967 14,000 13,662
39,691 41,924 42,721 44,697 39,841
2,607 2,951 2,411 4,034 738
1,682 1,463 1,390 1,517 1,632
3,501 3,502 3,486 3,512 3,871
9350 950 12,220 8,332 11,552
5,734 5,638 6,154 6,303 7490
57 62 73 &7 60
386 1,100 1,341 2,978 2,736
20,071 22,000 29,148 17,342 18,094
31,268 28,339 28,735 31,218 23,717
20,123 20,500 17,284 15,554 9,699

95,179 95,286 89,039 * b
348,121 363,656 352,258 372,998 349,502
415 403 418 411 407
2,323 2,067 1,624 2,122 1,358
37 42 7l b 35
10,198 10,387 5,995 4,262 4123
448 464 478 430 325
9,207 8,44¢ 3427 1,902 1,608
10,243 10,824 11,000 11,000 10,808
70 144 150 89 98
458 439 450 270 305
71 58 62 68 252
200 167 175 74 72
638 914 900 900 758
127 149 166 201 140
1,856 3,217 3,730 3,494 3,478
280 283 285 293 323
3,070 3272 3,686 3,085 3,388
5,043 3,636 4400 7,584 8,595
/00 604 592 593 490
217 beali} 210 197 54

(=
[l
[£5]

5,010
11,601
33,810

2,434
1,447
3,574

11,240
2,296
70
6,000
18,036
25,088

4360 .

91,674
340,421

430
2,347
35

2,963
338
1,708
10,318

82

159
10,763
23

834

95
3,047
340
3,619

3,163
746
22

2008

4,19
13,682
43,713
2,208
1,320
4,026

8,296
4,036
42
6,000
15,280
24,515
1,974
95,213
364,043

421
2,084
36

2,288

388
1,794
9289

103
348
143

g
1,162

69
2,650

346
3,789
4,722

373
94

451%
16,493
42,136

2,434

1,544

3,939

7,493
4,765
34
5,000
16,759
25,577
316
97,555
370,043

468
2,429
32

3,382

428
1,341
7318

7%
571
17

39

1,207

39
2,963
71
3,721

4,573
1,055
56

3,468
17076
44,683

2,536

1,948

4263

5,735
5,046
49
6,200
12,859
29,247
o

100,119
369,340

311
2,785
35

3,945

325
1,355
2,183

8,755
251
216

29

1,714

80
3.406

305
3,754

5,574
1,076
)

2,481
(3,419
43,518

2,387

L9727

o

5,735
4,987
40
4,700
12,356
29,764
0
110,918
369,191

39¢
3,355
37

2,598

274
1,231
6,880

30
1,142
0

26
1,229




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA,
OPERATING INDICATORS EY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{continued}
2003 2004 2003 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2088 2012

Business-typs sctivities:

Electre, water and wastewater operations

Eleetrie connections 15,480 18,754 19,113 19,800 18,338 19,605 20,580 20,338 20,208 20,856

Water conneptions 13,337 13,709 14067 14,932 15274 16,200 16,654 16,312 16218 16,390

Water ing repairs (6) 189 td4 126 292 281 272 176 85 300 252

Water treated {million gaflons) 2,886 2,951 2,768 3,079 ok ) 2,604 2,567 2,338 2,282 2,438

Sewage treated {million gallons) 2173 2,027 2,698 2277 1,940 2,038 1,957 2,048 £,648 1,651

Sanitation operations

Landfili usage (tons) 17,773 17,822 18,513 20,002 22,884 21,000 19,602 18,986 19,713 18,631

Yard waste hauled (tons) 1,328 1,056 260 961 1,198 1,183 1,135 1,002 1,403 1,021

Community Canter operations

Admissions 90,386 71,328 77,404 107,228 104,129 118,310 130,141 131,202 118,082 132,251

Adrport Operations,

Operations (avg month) 4,897 4,945 5,267 5912 §,292 o+ 5,976 4,324 4,994 4,885
*unavailable

(1} changed measure of acres mowed In fiscal year 2005 to acres mowed times munber of mowings.

(2} operation of the Multl Arts programuming asspmed by The Priends of the Muhi Arts Center, Inc. on May 1, 2012

(3} mini bus program erded March 2010

{4} measured in L in 2011

(5} measured in Ihs, in 2008

{6y 2003-2010 inchydes water main repairs cnly. Beginning in 2011, both water main and service line repairs arg included.

—
<
oo

Sources: Various City departments
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Employer

Oklahoms State University
Stillwater Public Schools
Stiltwater Medical Center
Wal-Mart (1}

City of 8tilwater

Stan Clark Companies (1)

QK State Dept. of Career Tech
Nationzl Standard

Stillwater Designs/Kicker Audio
Stillwater Natonal Bank
Mercury MerCruiser

Quebecor World/Quad Graphies
Creative Labs

Crheers:

Oncue Marketing

Meridian Technology Center
Ammsirong World Indusites
Fronfier Electronics

Stillwater Milling

Nomadics, Inc./ICX Technologics

(L} Although these enplovers were in business nine years ago, employee counts for refail employers for that time perfod is not readily available,

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS (2)

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Nine Years Ago

Current Year
Percentage
of Total City
Employees Rank Employment
6,107 1 28%
797 2 4%
721 3 3%
552 4 2%
533 5 2%
450 6 2%
250 7 1%
192 g 1%
188 9 1%
182 10 1%
0
0
0
166
131
121
110
97
o4

(2) Sources: Human Resource departments of various local employers

Employees

4,704

623
700

309

225
255
170
220
960
340
215

o

Lo AR R o] | =)

ot
<

Percentage
of Total City
Employment

24%
3%
4%

3%

1%
1%
1%
%
5%
2%
1%
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Personal Income

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Education Level in Years of
Schooling (3}

Percentage
Percentage high-  bachelor's

¢in fhousands of Per Capita schooi graduate degree or K-12 School Post-secondary  Unemployment
Fiscal Year Population (1) dollars) (2 Personal Income  Median Age (3) or higher higher Enrollment {4) Enrollment (4) Rate (5)
2003 40,735 1,564,678 22,168 5,356 22,292 2.6%
2004 41,320 1,623,651 23399 5,440 22,376 2.3%
2005 41,940 1,759,533 23,966 5479 21,596 3.9%
2006 45,674 1,925,135 24,911 5,560 23,748 5.0%
2007 46,383 2,162,451 27,050 5460 23,486 4.8%
2008 46,576 2,306,093 29.2%) 5,489 23,564 4.3%
2009 47,653 2,314,505 29,030 5,596 23,719 3%
2010 45,638 2402414 31,021 23.9 92.5% 46.6% 5,780 24,018 5.8%
2611 46,048 ok o 24.1 93.3% 47.0% 5,960 24,622 5.9%
2012 ok =k * *E i o 6,061 25,623 5.1%

** Data not available af time of publication

(1} Population estimates provided by the City of Stillwater Department of Community Development and the U.S. Census Bureaw,
2005 population estimate reflects the acceptance of the City's estimate challenge by the U.S. Census Bureau.
2007 population estimate reflects the acceptance of the City's estimate challenge by the U.S. Census Bureau.

(2 2003 through 2005 personal income estimates provided by Oklzhoma Department of Commerce. "Total Personal Income for Counties and MSAs: 2000 - 2005"
2006 through 2010 personal income estimates provided by U.S. Department of Coromerce.

(3} Median Age and educational aitainment provided by U.S. Census Bureau,
Education attainment refars to those persons 25 years or older.

{4) Enrollment figures are for the Fall Semester immediately following the fiscal year indicated and include Pre-k fuli-time students beginning ia 20604,
Post-secondary enrollment includes enrollment at Oklahorna State University-Stillwater, Northern Oklaboma College-Stiliwater,

and full/half-time students at Meridian Technology Center.

(5) Unemployment rate provided by Burean of Labor Statistics and 15 for Payne County.



